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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Welcome to this

          3  hearing of the City Council's Transportation

          4  Committee.  My name is John Liu, and I have the

          5  privilege of Chairing this Committee.

          6                 Today, we have two items on the

          7  agenda.  The first is a vote on Intro. No. 495-A, a

          8  bill that would address boater safety, by creating

          9  No-Wake zones in the Harlem River, and require the

         10  City to post signs about these No-Wake zones,

         11  prepare and distribute educational materials about

         12  the dangers of wakes, and establish a temporary,

         13  Citywide boater safety and wake-reduction task

         14  force.

         15                 This will be the third hearing on

         16  this bill. The Committee had a joint hearing with

         17  the Committee on Waterfronts, on June 9, earlier

         18  this year, and a second hearing on December 6, 2005.

         19                 The bill has been amended to

         20  incorporate changes suggested by advocates and the

         21  Administration, including creating two No-Wake

         22  zones, and establishing a temporary boater safety

         23  and wake reduction task force with a broader

         24  mission.

         25                 This bill creates a comprehensive
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          2  plan to improve boater safety, and we expect to take

          3  a vote on this a little bit later this morning.

          4                 The main substance of today's hearing

          5  is an oversight on recent TLC policy changes

          6  affecting the licensing and renewal of For- Hire

          7  Vehicle base stations, commonly known by New Yorkers

          8  as Car Services.

          9                 For- Hire Vehicles serve an important

         10  role in New York City's transportation network.

         11  These For- Hire Vehicles, or car services provide a

         12  valuable option, transportation option in many

         13  communities that are underserved by yellow cabs.

         14  But despite their usefulness, a base station can

         15  change the quality of life for local residents and

         16  businesses, possibly increasing traffic, noise, and

         17  pollution.

         18                 The TLC has recently changed the

         19  process for approving base stations, and is

         20  requiring more information, including an

         21  environmental assessment study, and a comprehensive

         22  operating plan.  Today's hearing will examine these

         23  changes as well as look at the process of how base

         24  stations are approved in general.

         25                 We have been joined by members of
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          2  this Committee, Council Member Joe Addabbo.

          3  Council Member Diana Reyna and Oliver Koppell are I

          4  believe, next door at a different hearing.  They'll

          5  be joining us shortly as well.  And we will be

          6  joined by other Committee Members.

          7                 So far, today, it seems like the

          8  disruption with the two bus companies in Queens is

          9  still relatively minimal.  I think people made

         10  preparations in advance for this.  Hopefully, this

         11  is the extent of which we will be facing Transit

         12  shutdowns in the near future.

         13                 Thank you very much Commissioner for

         14  joining us this morning.  We are joined,  delighted

         15  to be joined by Matthew Daus, the Chairperson and

         16  Commissioner at the Taxi and Limousine Commission.

         17  Good morning.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning.  I'd

         19  like to echo those sentiments, Chairman Liu, and

         20  hopefully, we will not have a full- blown strike,

         21  and of course, we would respectfully request the

         22  indulgence of the Committee in terms of the TLC's

         23  role with this effort.  We've been working very,

         24  very, very hard and we'd appreciate your

         25  understanding of our time limitations.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning

          4  Chairman Liu, Members of the Transportation

          5  Committee.  My name is Matt Daus.  I am the

          6  Commissioner and Chairman of the New York City Taxi

          7  and Limousine Commission.  And I am joined by my

          8  First Deputy Commissioner, Andrew Salkin, who

          9  oversees the base licensing process.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  appear before you today to present testimony

         12  regarding the base licensing process for TLC license

         13  for  For- Hire Bases, also known as FHBs.  As you

         14  are aware, in addition to regulating the Yellow

         15  Medallion Taxi industry, the TLC also regulates the

         16  FHB industry.  This includes reviewing applications

         17  for, and issuing licenses to, base station

         18  operators, vehicle owners, and drivers.  My

         19  testimony today will focus on the review of

         20  applications and the issuance of licenses to operate

         21  livery or community car service base stations.

         22                 The requirements by which the TLC

         23  reviews such applications are largely set forth in

         24  the Administrative Code.  In particular, Title 19,

         25  Chapter Five.  Also, Chapter Six of the TLC's rules
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          2  and regulations mostly replicates the language of

          3  the Administrative Code provisions.

          4                 The TLC is responsible for reviewing

          5  applications, and making licensing decisions based

          6  upon standards that are set forth in the applicable

          7  laws and rules.  All applicants for a new FHB base

          8  station license begin the process by completing the

          9  initial application form and submitting the required

         10  administrative fee to the TLC.  This initial

         11  application has recently been streamlined to make it

         12  easier to read and understand.  And has also been

         13  made available on the Internet from our website.

         14                 A copy of the initial application is

         15  appended to my testimony for review by this

         16  Committee.  A similar initial application form

         17  exists for current base station license owners who

         18  wish to renew their licenses, change the location of

         19  their base stations, or make a change in the

         20  ownership of their base stations, which must be

         21  completed and submitted together with the applicable

         22  administrative fee.

         23                 The applicant is then required to

         24  submit additional information to the TLC, including

         25  a bond, background information on the proposed
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          2  owners, and proof of available off- street parking

          3  facilities.  Where applicable, applicants are

          4  required to perform an environmental assessment in

          5  accordance with both City and State law, and to

          6  submit such assessment as part of the application.

          7                 The applicant is further required to

          8  request written comments from the Council Member,

          9  Community Board, and Police Precinct in the area

         10  where the base station is located.  However, the

         11  applicant is only required to make best efforts to

         12  obtain the information from the Council Member,

         13  Community Board, and Police Precinct.  Should the

         14  applicant not receive a response from them, it would

         15  not result in the rejection of their application.

         16                 TLC staff review the initial

         17  application form, the required materials, and any

         18  supplemental information provided by the applicant

         19  and then make a recommendation to the Chairperson

         20  and the Commission at large for approval or

         21  rejection of the application.  The criteria for

         22  assessment of the application and reaching a

         23  recommendation are set forth in the Administrative

         24  Code and the TLC rules.

         25                 Since early this year, TLC staff

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  recommendations have been presented at public

          3  meetings of the Commission.  At those public

          4  meetings, the Commission reviews, discusses, and

          5  then votes to approve or deny each application.

          6  Where an application is approved, the Commission's

          7  determination is forwarded to the Council, the

          8  applicant is notified, and the license becomes valid

          9  after a period of 90 days.  Where an application is

         10  denied, the applicant is notified of such decision.

         11                 In addition, the TLC has made a

         12  number of additional enhancements to the application

         13  process over the past year, consistent with the

         14  requirements set forth in the Administrative Code,

         15  and the TLC's rules.  For example, in order to

         16  assist the Commission in evaluating fitness to

         17  operate a base station, applicants are now required

         18  to submit a comprehensive operating plan, that

         19  includes information about the ability to adequately

         20  manage the base, the extent and quality of service

         21  provided, as well as the impact on the quality of

         22  life in the vicinity of the base station.

         23                 As noted earlier, applicants are

         24  required to reach out directly to their local

         25  Council Members, Community Boards, and Police
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          2  Precincts.  Prior to this year, the TLC had sent

          3  letters on behalf of applicants requesting input

          4  from them.  The TLC believes that, as business

          5  owners, base stations should be held directly

          6  accountable for serving and interacting directly

          7  with the neighborhoods and communities in which they

          8  operate.

          9                 Also, requiring base stations to

         10  reach out directly to local Council Members,

         11  Community Boards and Police Precincts as part of the

         12  application process further ensures that they become

         13  integrated into the fabric of the communities they

         14  are aiming to serve.

         15                 After consultation with the City

         16  Council, the industry and TLC staff, I formally

         17  notified and reminded Council Members of their role

         18  in the base licensing process by letter earlier this

         19  Summer.  A copy of that letter is also appended to

         20  the testimony submitted to this Committee.  It's a

         21  copy of the letter to the Speaker, but I believe an

         22  identical letter was sent to all Council Members,

         23  Community Boards, and Borough Presidents.

         24                 The enhancements that we have made

         25  are recognition of the fact that the TLC's process
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          2  for review and issuance of base station licenses is

          3  a dynamic one.  Over the past few months, TLC staff

          4  have met with Borough Presidents and Community

          5  Boards in Brooklyn, Queens, and the Bronx, where the

          6  majority of FHB base stations are located, to

          7  discuss base station licensing.  We have received

          8  some important feedback that has already informing

          9  our policies and actions.

         10                 Our goal is to ensure that FHBs, in

         11  addition to our other regulated industries, are able

         12  to help provide important transportation services to

         13  the general public.  This is a work in progress, and

         14  we expect to recommend, propose, and implement

         15  further changes to further improve this process.

         16                 As always, we look forward to working

         17  with the City Council, to consider their input,

         18  advice and direction on this important process that

         19  directly affects the constituents in each of your

         20  communities.

         21                 Thank you.  I would now be happy to

         22  answer any questions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         24

         25                 So, in the last six months  --  and
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          2  this is something that I think our staff, and I'm

          3  sure you've heard from other Council Members  --  in

          4  the last six months, many of my colleagues in the

          5  Council, as well as our partners at the Community

          6  Boards have voiced some concern about the pressure

          7  with which applicants for renewal or new base

          8  station licenses, have been approaching our offices

          9  and the Community Board offices with a great deal of

         10    --  a sense of urgency.  That they must have these

         11  letters.  So that is the new policy that you just

         12  talked about at the end of your testimony?  What's

         13  the reason that the TLC decided to enact this kind

         14  of change?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, it's two-

         16  fold.  One is for administrative convenience.  But

         17  the bigger reason is to make sure that the base

         18  station operators become more interactive with the

         19  Council Members, the Community Boards, Police

         20  Precincts, Borough Presidents.  The people that

         21  often sometimes complain about some unruly bases

         22  that we feel that more can be accomplished through

         23  communication directly with your offices as opposed

         24  to the TLC being an intermediary.  So while it does

         25  cut down on some of the paperwork for us, that's not
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          2  the main reason.  I mean, we are able to focus our

          3  staff on processing the paperwork as opposed to

          4  sending out letters where we would get no responses.

          5

          6                 I believe it's already created, as

          7  you know, ample discussion.  I'm not sure, --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's for sure.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'd love to hear

         10  more about the pressures that you're feeling are

         11  being exerted.  Hopefully, they're not inappropriate

         12  pressures.

         13                 We are going before the Commission

         14  with each of these applications and we're taking

         15  them very, very seriously.  As you know, the Council

         16  has a long history of involvement with base

         17  stations, going back even to the prior Council where

         18  this law was passed, and I think if you look at the

         19  intent of the law, I think it's clear in every which

         20  way from Sunday, that in that law, there's community

         21  involvement in the application process, including

         22  the Council actually voting on each and every base

         23  application after we're done with approving it.  And

         24  recommending it to you.

         25                 So in that spirit, we thought it
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          2  would be good to have the base operators interact

          3  directly with your offices.  If that's causing some

          4  type of hardship or some type of problems, we would

          5  love to hear about it so that we can react to it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          7                 We've been now physically joined by

          8  Council Member Diana Reyna, from Brooklyn; and

          9  Council Member Oliver Koppell, from the Bronx.  And

         10  also joined by Committee Member Helen Sears, from

         11  Queens.

         12                 Now, the idea, the intent behind

         13  making that change was to have, to I guess,

         14  encourage more interaction between these base

         15  stations owners and people in the community, such as

         16  Council Members and Community Board leaders.  But I

         17  think the TLC went ahead and made the change, I

         18  guess doing us a favor.  Sending us a letter,

         19  notifying us of the change, but really having no

         20  discussion about the intent or the enactment, or the

         21  implementation of that change.  So, from our point

         22  of view, it seems like what you're saying is that

         23  the TLC wanted to do us a favor, so it just went

         24  ahead and did this.  Even though many of my

         25  colleagues were not aware of the change, except
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          2  through this one letter that I guess, at some point,

          3  the TLC did send to us.  But we weren't really aware

          4  of it until we started getting multiple requests and

          5  daily visits, hourly phone calls, from applicants

          6  for renewals or new base stations that they must

          7  have a letter from us, otherwise they will not get

          8  their renewal or their new license.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I mean, if there

         10  was some type of breakdown, Mr. Chairman, in the

         11  communication process, I'd like to apologize for

         12  that on behalf of the agency.  It's my understanding

         13  that there were discussions, and a lot of this was

         14  prompted, quite frankly, by some recent experiences

         15  with a few Council Members, that had some issues

         16  with a couple of bases that we took a close look at

         17  the process as a result of that.

         18                 My understanding that staff had

         19  conversations, I can't tell you which spoke with

         20  who, in the interest of moving forward on that, I'd

         21  like to apologize and say that moving forward, we

         22  should establish a clear protocol so that before we

         23  actually send these letters out, and I think it's

         24  probably, I think you and I would agree that it's

         25  probably impractical for our office to have
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          2  individual conversations with every Council Member,

          3  but at least certainly yourself, the Speaker's

          4  office, and some of the key members of your

          5  Committee that you'd like to include in that

          6  process.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.  I think, just

          8  internally within the Council, I've gotten numerous

          9  inquiries, to which I couldn't really clearly

         10  explain the rationale for the changes, or the intent

         11  of the changes, because we had not communicated

         12  directly on this.  So certainly, keeping the lines

         13  of communications open is a positive thing.

         14                 But still, there are questions about

         15  what is the real intent behind these changes that

         16  have been implemented by the TLC.  I know several of

         17  my colleagues will weigh in with questions of their

         18  own, and maybe some of them will be similar.

         19                 Let me start off by asking you,

         20  Commissioner, how many base stations have been

         21  approved in this year, 2005?  It doesn't have to be

         22  an exact number, you know, to the nearest ten, or if

         23  that's even too precise, nearest 25, or nearest 50.

         24  And if you could give us the number of new base

         25  stations approved as well as renewal stations.
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          2                 MR. SALKIN: Okay.  That's certainly

          3  information we can provide to the Council.  Andrew

          4  Salkin, First Deputy Commissioner of the Taxi and

          5  Limousine Commission.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So in 2005, you

          7  don't know how many base stations --

          8                 MR. SALKIN: We know exactly.  We have

          9  that information.  We did not prepare that for this

         10  testimony.  We can get you that exact information.

         11  Basically, at every Commission meeting, since

         12  starting about in the Spring, there's been about 30

         13  bases brought forth before the Commission.  And

         14  there's a couple Commission meetings we missed.

         15  There's been about 150 total that have been approved

         16  through this change.  And the main change that we've

         17  done, and the most important change, is bringing the

         18  bases in front of the Commissioners.

         19                 And I think one of the reasons you're

         20  facing pressure from the bases in your communities

         21  is the fact that it is going in front of the

         22  Commissioner, which is something that never happened

         23  before.  I think some of the bases take that very

         24  seriously, which is the real intent of the major

         25  change we made, which is to bring it in front of the
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          2  Board and have them make some --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, Mr. Salkin, this

          4  is actually, I mean this is in addition to what

          5  Commissioner Daus testified.

          6                 MR. SALKIN: No.  It was highlighted

          7  in the testimony.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That the applicants

          9  appear before the entire Committee?

         10                 MR. SALKIN: They don't appear.  The

         11  application is brought up in front of the Commission

         12  for approval or denial based on staff work and

         13  recommendation.  So part of the application process

         14  is that they fill out  --  is that they get a letter

         15  of recommendation or that they send a letter asking

         16  for recommendation from the precinct, the Community

         17  Board, and the Council Member. They don't need that

         18  to be approved by staff, but now the staff then

         19  stands in front of the Commissioner and says, here

         20  is the space, we recommend that they are approved,

         21  and here's why we're recommended that they approve.

         22  And it's based on the application that you see in

         23  front of you, they've met all of the criteria.

         24                 And some of the bases have been

         25  brought up for renewal, and there's been some pretty
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          2  heated debate, and I think the Commissioner can

          3  elaborate on some of the concerns that the

          4  Commission has found.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I mean, you asked

          6  a very specific question, Mr. Chairman, about why we

          7  made the changes that you're referring to, which is

          8  requiring that the base applicants go to the Council

          9  Members.  In terms of the broader review of base

         10  licensing, I think that this is a process  --  you

         11  know, the Council has a long history with this.

         12  Many years ago, when the law was first passed, and I

         13  was counsel, I remember that there was dedicated

         14  staff that sat down with staff from the TLC that

         15  actually put together a very comprehensive procedure

         16  for not only developing what we have done for years,

         17  but also the work that was done on the Council side.

         18    Even after we send over our applications.

         19                 So there's a long history of making

         20  sure that everything, every nook and cranny was

         21  looked at, and every stone was unturned.  And that

         22  would include, of course, checks of whether any

         23  outstanding fines and monies, and taxes are due to

         24  the City. Including also you know, making sure that

         25  the corporation is valid. Criminal background
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          2  checks.  You name it, it was part of the process.

          3  And that was certainly a collaborative  --  the

          4  process that had existed for several years.

          5                 We're taking a look at the overall

          6  process for two reasons.  Number one, to increase

          7   --  actually three reasons. Number one to increase

          8  administrative efficiency.  Number two, to make the

          9  base stations even more accountable and integrated

         10  into the fabric of the community and responsive to

         11  the concerns of the community.  And number three,

         12  also to make sure that the business owners are held

         13  more accountable.  And that's where, as my First

         14  Deputy pointed out, the Commission's involvement in

         15  looking at each and every one of these applications,

         16  and the operating plans of these bases, which is a

         17  new requirement, consistent with existing laws.

         18                 The laws set forth standards.  What

         19  we've asked that the bases do is take a look at

         20  their records, and the way that they do business,

         21  and provide a business plan.  I think that every

         22  business that's a good business, should have a

         23  business plan.  But more importantly, this business

         24  plan takes into consideration concerns that myself

         25  and the members of our Board have.  Which is that
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          2  there are several bases, many bases throughout the

          3  City that have horrendous records of dispatching

          4  drivers without licenses, of dispatching drivers who

          5  have suspended licenses, vehicles that are not

          6  undergoing inspection and pose safety problems to

          7  the community.

          8                 So in terms of the broader answer to

          9  your question, that's why the Commission is looking

         10  at these applications as opposed to lower- level

         11  staff day in and day out.  And asking questions of

         12  the base owners, why do you have so many

         13  convictions? And we've actually asked many of these

         14  base owners with bad records to come back to us and

         15  give us a business plan to show how you're going to

         16  change your system to stop your drivers from giving

         17  out the cars to people who don't have licenses.

         18  It's a very serous public safety issue.

         19                 So that's really the top of the list.

         20    The other stuff is good.  It's reform.  It's good

         21  government, quite frankly. You know, we made an

         22  application look and read a lot easier than it did

         23  in the past.  It's easier to read.  It looks good.

         24  It's got some frequently asked questions with it.

         25  So this is all good stuff.  And we're looking
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          2  forward to making more changes in the future, so we

          3  would certainly appreciate your input on what we've

          4  done to date.  And if you have any suggestions, we'd

          5  be happy to work together with you on them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you

          7  Commissioner, and Deputy Commissioner.  If you would

          8  bear with us, we're going to take about two or three

          9  minutes to take care of some housekeeping right now.We

         10  do have a quorum, and Committee Members, we are here

         11  to not only have an oversight hearing on the topic

         12  of base station licensing, but also to vote on

         13  Intro. No. 495- A, a bill that addresses boater

         14  safety issues by creating a No- Wake zone in the

         15  Harlem River, requiring the City to post signs about

         16  these No Wake zones, prepare and distribute

         17  educational materials about the dangers of wakes,

         18  and establish a temporary Citywide boater safety and

         19  wake- reduction task force.  And we are going to

         20  vote on this bill.  I turn the floor over to the

         21  prime sponsor of the bill, Council Member Miguel

         22  Martinez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

         24  Mr. Chair.  I want to urge my colleagues to support

         25  this important piece of legislation.  As you are
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          2  aware, recently, in my Councilmanic district, by the

          3  Hudson River, we had a tragic accident in which we

          4  lost the life of a rower, washed the Hudson River

          5  along the new boat house.  It's highly known for a

          6  lot of water sports, where we have the Columbia

          7  rowing team, and we have several other colleges, and

          8  even some of our public school students who are now

          9  using more of that area.  And because of the wake

         10  that are produced by the high speed boats in that

         11  area, it has become extremely dangerous.   And what

         12  we're asking with this piece of legislation is that

         13  we regulate the wake along the Hudson River and I

         14  think this will be a model legislation to look at

         15  other areas around the City, where more and more,

         16  and more our waters are being used, not only for

         17  commute, but for sports.  And it is extremely

         18  important, and as you know, we had testimony from

         19  the families of the victim, and even from some

         20  individuals who were part of that incident that

         21  survived. And I think this will set an example in

         22  terms of making our waterfronts, and our water

         23  accessible not only for commute, but also for

         24  sports.  And I think that it is an important piece

         25  of legislation that today, we're going to be
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          2  honoring the memory of the life we lost.

          3                 And I also want to thank the

          4  Administration for working with us and coming

          5  forward this piece of legislation and working with

          6  the Council to produce what we call a task force

          7  that will be monitoring and working to ensure that

          8  our waters are safe for all.

          9                 So I want to thank you also, Mr.

         10  Chairman, and the staff of the Committee for helping

         11  us produce this important piece of legislation.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         13  Council Member Martinez.  There's no question that

         14  there's been a great deal of increase of activity on

         15  our waterways.  And in the couple of oversight

         16  hearings we had on this issue, it became also

         17  increasingly clear that people weren't clear exactly

         18  who was responsible for making sure that watercraft,

         19  whether it be business or pleasure on our waterways,

         20  was being operated in a safe manner.

         21                 And so, I think the creation of the

         22  task force will go a long way towards achieving that

         23  goal in the near future.  And at the same time, it

         24  just makes sense for our City to begin to implement

         25  these No- Wake zones, particularly in these two
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          2  locations on the Harlem River.

          3                 At this time, we'll call a vote on

          4  Intro. No. 495- A. I certainly recommend a "yes"

          5  vote on this bill.  Will the Clerk please call the

          6  roll?

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: KOPPELL.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I might just

         15  explain my vote, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: First of all,

         18  I want to complement my colleague, Councilman

         19  Martinez for this proposal. It's much overdue, and

         20  I'm delighted that we're doing it.  I also want to

         21  thank him, and also the Chair, and the staff of the

         22  Committee for amending the original proposal to

         23  include, as a separate, I guess, separate, or part

         24  of the wake zone, I don't know how to put it, the

         25  area between the Spitendival (phonetic) Trestle
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          2  Bridge and the Broadway Bridge.  That is an area

          3  that is used by many rowers, particularly Columbia

          4  University.  That area was not originally in the

          5  bill.  It is the area that abuts my district as

          6  well, I believe, of Councilman Jackson's district on

          7  the Manhattan side.  And as I said, it's very

          8  heavily utilized by rowers, and has been for a long

          9  time.  And to create this protective zone there is

         10  very important.

         11                 I would hope, that as time goes by,

         12  and with the Committee, that we would link the two

         13  zones.  Because there's now an area of water between

         14  the, if you want to call it the northern zone and

         15  the southern zone, that's not part of the zone.  And

         16  I think, frankly, it should be, because the sculls

         17  do actually go from the northern zone to the

         18  southern zone, and then south toward Yankee Stadium.

         19

         20                 But this is certainly a step forward,

         21  and I think that in the long run, it will, in fact,

         22  save lives, prevent accidents, and create a much

         23  safer situation, where the people rowing on the

         24  river will be less nervous about going onto the

         25  river, because the power boats will have to go at a
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          2  very slow rate of speed.

          3                 So this is really a very good bill.

          4  Something long overdue.  And frankly, Miguel, I wish

          5  I had thought of it earlier. But you are to be

          6  complemented for doing this.  And the Committee for

          7  moving it along quickly.  And I'm sure that every

          8  rower in the river starting this Spring, will be

          9  grateful for this.

         10                 I withdraw my request, and vote aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Martinez

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         15  explain my vote.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: This Committee

         18  had a hearing about a year and a half ago, and the

         19  members and those that were in testifying were

         20  really shocked of the looseness of the regulations

         21  of those waters.  And that nobody knew who was in

         22  charge of what. It was really deplorable.

         23                 So there is hope.  And I have to

         24  thank Councilman Martinez.  Because this has come

         25  about and it's only taken about a year and a half.
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          2  And I have to say, that I think if something

          3  happened sooner, there would not have been that

          4  death.  And I truly believe that.

          5                 I vote aye, and I also would like to

          6  be added to the bill, please.  Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

          8  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

          9  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council Members,

         10  please sign the Committee Report.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And Clerk, please

         12  keep the roll open for other Committee Members who

         13  will be joining us.

         14                 Thank you Council Members for voting

         15  on this, and we will certainly name this law in

         16  honor of Jim Rundzdorff (phonetic), who was,

         17  unfortunately, taken from us on October 24th in an

         18  accident.

         19                 Thank you, Commissioner, for

         20  indulging us.  But hopefully, we didn't take too

         21  much time there.

         22                 So getting back to the issue of base

         23  station licensing, new applications as well as

         24  renewal applications.  So based on what has been

         25  said so far, it seems like there are a number of
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          2  discreet changes that have been made in the

          3  application process.  One is that the Commission,

          4  the TLC, the Taxi and Limousine Commission, the

          5  actual members are actually reviewing the

          6  applications.  The applicants aren't appearing

          7  before the Commission, but the Commission is

          8  actually sitting in a meeting and reviewing the

          9  paperwork of the applications, and wherever

         10  necessary, or warranted, having a discussion about

         11  that application.  Is that correct?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is there now a vote

         14  that is conducted by the Commissioners to --

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.  After the

         16  interaction takes place between the base applicant

         17  and TLC staff.  There's a lot of going back and

         18  forth, and answering questions before the

         19  application actually ends up before the Board.

         20                 But ultimately, the TLC staff will

         21  make a recommendations as to whether what has been

         22  submitted is consistent with the laws and rules.

         23  And then, what will happen, is the Commission will

         24  exercise its discretion in determining whether the

         25  base should be licensed or not in accordance with
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          2  those rules and standards.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And then, as you

          5  know, it comes over here to the Council, and if

          6  there's no action, it becomes licensed within 90

          7  days.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And the

          9  environmental assessment that is now part of the

         10  application, was that also part of the application

         11  before?  Or is that a new requirement on the

         12  applicants?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, that's only

         14  applicable to a small number of applicants.  The new

         15  bases, and also, if a base wants to change its

         16  location.  It does not apply to the overwhelming

         17  majority of renewals.

         18                 So if you have a base already, that's

         19  been in existence for 20 years, you don't have to go

         20  and do an environmental assessment.

         21                 That is part of the new requirements

         22  that we have. It is also though, required by State

         23  and local law, in new bases. But we do use that as a

         24  tool as well, to look at the factors that the

         25  Council has in its local law, such as the affect on
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          2  the community quality of life issue.  It's an

          3  objective standard by which we can look at these

          4  documents and determine whether the base should be

          5  in that community, and whether it will pose any

          6  traffic problems, or other issues.  That's something

          7  that is helpful to us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So it's just

          9  basically for new bases.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And before this

         12  change, last year, say, were the new base

         13  applications required to submit an environmental

         14  assessment?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My understanding

         16  is that going back even to the beginning of this law

         17  that the Council passed, and are working, it never

         18  was basically required of them to be submitted.  So

         19  it's not required by law.  No, it is required by

         20  law, it just wasn't done.  So when that was brought

         21  to my attention, we started looking at this process,

         22  we said, that makes sense.  We interpreted the law

         23  in the light most favorable to us getting our job

         24  done.  And doing it correctly.  You can debate

         25  whether it should or should not be applicable, we
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          2  feel that we have a strong legal argument that it

          3  should be required.  And hence, we require it of all

          4  new bases, consistent with State and local law.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: This is one of

          7  these things, when the Council passed a law, and we

          8  sat down years ago, it was one of these things that

          9  was not done for many, many years.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's fine.  We're

         11  not trying to pick bones about that, we just want to

         12  understand the process and the changes that have

         13  taken place.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the environmental

         16  assessment is required by law.  And the TLC is now

         17  beginning to do that for new bases.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, it has been

         19  doing it for new bases since the beginning of the

         20  year.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Since the beginning

         22  of this year.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But it's important

         24  to point out that we don't actually do it ourselves.

         25    The applicant has the burden of proof.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.  You just

          3  simply require the applicant to provide the

          4  environmental assessment.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.  And we'll

          6  analyze it and discuss it at our Board meetings and

          7  make decisions based upon it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  But last

          9  year, and the years before, it had not been done.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It hasn't been

         11  done for many  -- since the beginning of the law was

         12  passed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And you're also now

         14  requiring a business plan.  Was that, is that a new

         15  requirement on the applicants?  Or --

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's a new

         17  requirement, but it's consistent with, based upon

         18  council's advice, all the standards that the Council

         19  put in its law.  And just to give you  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the business plan

         21  is legally required.  It's required by law.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.  The standards

         23    --  there are many ways we can get information.

         24  We could ask questions on an application form that's

         25  hundreds of pages long.  What we've asked is that in
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          2  preparing applications to respond to the criteria

          3  that the Council has put in its law.  That you put

          4  it together in the form of a business plan.

          5                 I'll give you a couple of examples.

          6  If you look at our application documents, you're

          7  required to set forth your off street parking

          8  location requirements, and how you plan to use them.

          9  And also, you need to basically  --  and this is a

         10  new requirement -- the law gives us the ability to

         11  look at your record, and to determine whether you're

         12  fit, based upon how you've been operating for these

         13  years, including your convictions for serious

         14  offenses.

         15                 We ask that you pay special attention

         16  to violations involving laws the dispatching of

         17  unlicensed drivers and so forth. And we ask that you

         18  now, if you want us to license you again, that you

         19  explain what you're going to do.  What type of

         20  systems you're going to put into place to prevent

         21  this from happening.

         22                 This is really a way to try to clean

         23  up some of the bad operators in the industry.  So we

         24  were able to use existing laws and regulations, and

         25  asking the bases to think about how they do business
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          2  to try to police their bases better, and be more

          3  responsible and accountable, as opposed to just

          4  letting the drivers, and some of these bases have

          5  hundreds of drivers, go out and do what they want to

          6  do.  You need to have some type of checks and

          7  controls.

          8                 So to answer your question, it is a

          9  new way of presenting the information.  And we're

         10  asking the bases to provide more information, but

         11  it's all consistent with the standards that the

         12  Council put in its law when it first passed the Base

         13  Licensing law.  So just a different way of

         14  presenting it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: With regards to the

         16  business plan that you mention in your testimony,

         17  maybe we're calling it a business plan now, but the

         18  information that is expected to be provided by the

         19  business plan is not information that the TLC did

         20  not ask for previously.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Some of it is.

         22  Some of it is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the TLC is now

         24  asking for new information in the business plan as

         25  well.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, we're asking

          3  you to explain what you're going to do about your

          4  record.  Your bad, horrendous record.  That's what

          5  it's about.  And it's called the Comprehensive

          6  Operating Plan.  Maybe business plan is not the best

          7  way to go about it.  We're not looking for you to

          8  show us how much profit you're going to be making.

          9  We're asking you to show us what you're going to do

         10  to make your base operate in conjunction with the

         11  laws, so that we can have better operating bases

         12  that serve the community.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         14                 So just for us to get an idea of what

         15  we're dealing with here.  Earlier, I had asked you

         16  how many applications have been approved in 2005.

         17  And I know, Mr. Salkin, you can't give us the exact

         18  number, but you must be able to give us some rough

         19  estimate.

         20                 MR. SALKIN: One hundred and fifty for

         21  the year.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Roughly a

         23  hundred and fifty for the year.  Is that for the

         24  most part, renewals?

         25                 MR. SALKIN: Yes, No.  About 85 to 90
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          2  percent are renewals.  But I must state that those

          3  are the bases that were able to complete the

          4  application process, that were able to go forward

          5  and go in front of the Commission.  We understand

          6  that the process is new, and one of the things that

          7  the staff is working on, and working with, is all

          8  the bases that are up for renewal, working with them

          9  on the new process, working them through it.

         10                 We don't give them a timeframe, per

         11  se.  As long as they're working towards finishing

         12  it, they're allowed to continue to operate past

         13  their license date.  So there's many bases, for

         14  example, that were up in May, and June, that are

         15  continuing to operate, and we're just working with

         16  them to complete their application.

         17                 So there's a lot of work that's still

         18  going on in the staff, and I think it's interesting

         19  that you said that you're getting a lot of pressure.

         20    Because one of the things that isn't right now,

         21  because it's first round, we're not trying to apply

         22  a lot of pressure.  The only people we apply

         23  pressure on are people that don't respond period.

         24                 If you're working in good faith, we

         25  want to work with you.  On that end, we've actually
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          2  held many sessions in the evening, with bases.

          3  We've had probably over a hundred bases attend.  All

          4  the bases have been invited to learn how to do this

          5  and learn what we're looking for.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We've had

          7  informational seminars for the bases to explain the

          8  requirements, and they've been very well received.

          9  And we're going to try to get you the exact number.

         10  I mean, we have a whole bunch of

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No.  We don't --

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:   --  Coming on

         13  for Thursday.  We might get it before we leave,

         14  actually.  It's around 100 or 150.

         15  That's mostly renewals.  As you are probably aware

         16  of, the law says that the administrative review

         17  process doesn't hold up the ability for someone to

         18  continue holding their license and providing

         19  services to the community.  Just because you're two-

         20  year renewal comes up, as long as you've submitted

         21  your application, and it's in the works, you don't

         22  have to, you could still operate.  That's what the

         23  law says.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Let me

         25  just point out that  --  well, not point out, but in
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          2  case you aren't aware that we are getting pressure,

          3  we definitely are getting pressure.  And a lot of

          4  the pressure comes from this perception out there

          5  that a letter from us or from their respective

          6  Council Member, and the precinct, and the Community

          7  Board, is absolutely essential for approval.

          8  Otherwise, they will not be approved.  The

          9  perception is out there.  So whatever you could do

         10  to address that perception, that would be helpful, I

         11  think, to everybody involved.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We would be happy

         13  to reiterate that to the industry and the

         14  applicants.  I believe that it is set forth in the

         15  requirements.  We'll double check it, and we'll send

         16  out an additional reminder, if that would be

         17  helpful.  It's not required, for the record that

         18  they  --  they're just required t show that they

         19  contacted you, and they tried to interact with you.

         20  And in some instances, it has led to quite a lot of

         21  discussion between the stakeholders in the community

         22  and the applicant.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: So to that extent,

         25  it's worked, I guess.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In 2005, roughly 150

          3  applications have been approved.  Roughly 130 of

          4  them have been renewals.  And roughly 20 of them

          5  have been for new base stations.

          6                 Now, in 2004, how many applications

          7  were approved by the Taxi and Limousine Commission?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't have that

          9  information right now, but I can get it for you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Roughly speaking.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Don't know.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: More or less than

         13  150?

         14                 MR. SALKIN: Again, we can get you

         15  that exact information.  Again, the process  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We're not looking

         17  for exact information.

         18                 MR. SALKIN: If I had to guess, since

         19  it's a two- year license, and there's about 500

         20  bases that have to go through this process, so you

         21  assume about half of them come up every year.  So

         22  you would assume somewhere around 200 plus.  And

         23  what we have this year  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Probably 250.

         25                 MR. SALKIN: Probably.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If there are roughly

          3  500 --

          4                 MR. SALKIN: You figure about half.

          5  And what we have this year, is we have many more

          6  that are under review for longer periods of time.

          7                 Now, what would happen though, in the

          8  past, and this is what you would assume, is that

          9  250, in the past, because it was staff review, and

         10  the ways that the process worked, is that if someone

         11  failed to actually submit all their information, but

         12  paid their bill, their licensing fee, the TLC staff

         13  had a very hard tine, kind of deciding when was

         14  enough, enough.  When did the person, when did the

         15  staff decide that someone wasn't going to actually

         16  go through with the application process.  So what we

         17  had was a lot of licenses that would lag on.  And

         18  they would drag, and the complete application would

         19  never get filled out.

         20                 So what we have now is a process

         21  where if someone fails to complete their application

         22  in a timely period, they get brought up in front of

         23  the Commission, as kind of one final chance, and in

         24  fact, the last Commission meeting was the first time

         25  we did that.  Where bases who were, their license
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          2  was up in January and February, were brought in

          3  front of the Commission at the November meeting, and

          4  they were offered as a staff, these are seven bases

          5  that have failed to complete their applications.

          6  We've given them significant time.  We've called

          7  them.  We've warned them.  And what the Commission

          8  decided to do this time, and I guess it's kind of

          9  setting precedent, is they decided to give them 30

         10  more day.  With a letter from the Chairman, saying,

         11  you have 30 days to complete your application, or

         12  you will be deemed that you're not interested in

         13  being renewed, and you will be closed.

         14                 There is a Commission meeting this

         15  week, and at this time, it looks like at least three

         16  of those bases have completed their application, and

         17  four are in the process.  We think that  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         19                 MR. SALKIN: This is new.  We actually

         20  have the ability to end the process.  Where before,

         21  we didn't.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: As you know, Mr.

         23  Chairman.  I mean, this has been a long and arduous

         24  process running in circles.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm just asking
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          2  simple questions here.  You guys are giving me

          3  extremely elaborate answers, which, I suppose we

          4  commend you for that.  I just want to get an

          5  understanding of how, if there are roughly 500 base

          6  stations out there, and then presumably every year,

          7  we have a couple of dozen new ones.  So just say

          8  500.  So they go on for two  -- the licenses are for

          9  two years, so every other year, every year, we

         10  expect roughly 250 renewals to come up.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Mr. Chairman, if I

         12  could.  We don't mean to be long in the responses,

         13  but it is important to point these things out to be

         14  thorough about it.  It really is, because it's not

         15  that simple.  And I don't want to speculate, I'd

         16  rather just wait a few moments to get you the exact

         17  numbers.  It's been a long process, and it takes a

         18  long time.  So it's not as simple as saying it's a

         19  two- year renewal, there are 500 licensees and 250

         20  come up during the year.  I mean, some bases have

         21  actually gone an additional two years without

         22  getting their licenses getting renewed between the

         23  time it takes  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Wait.  Could you

         25  repeat that part?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Some of these

          3  bases have taken a long time, as you know, to get

          4  from beginning, filling out their paperwork, and

          5  getting through the Council process.  It is such a

          6  long process by law, and administratively, that some

          7  of them, in the past, have gone you know, close to

          8  their next renewal date, unfortunately.  Many years

          9  ago.

         10                 And a lot of that has to do with the

         11  level of oversight that has been exerted by not just

         12  the Commission, but also the Council.  We used to

         13  have -- there was a gentleman who used to work here,

         14  Nathan Reilly, who's one of his major

         15  responsibilities was just to redo and double check

         16  every single thing that we did.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: He was personally

         18  very fond of the process.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And he did a very

         20  good job.  And he would sometimes point out mistakes

         21  that were made, and things that needed to be

         22  corrected.  But a lot of times, as you probably have

         23  heard from staff that have been around, what would

         24  happen is, we'd get it over here, and then the

         25  application would be pulled back because Mr. Reilly
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          2  found an issue that needed to be addressed. And then

          3  it would come back to us, and it would come over

          4  here, and before you know it, you know, two years

          5  have gone by.

          6                 And I don't think that's fair to the

          7  applicants.  I think we both would agree that we

          8  need to give them a more truncated streamlined

          9  process.  There may be different ways to do that, as

         10  you suggest.  And we're open to hearing whatever

         11  ideas that you have, because I think we would like

         12  to make some more changes to make it even better.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, for the

         14  record, I think that Mr. Reilly was always

         15  advocating streamlining of the process.  I was just

         16  joking before when I said he was personally fond of

         17  the process.

         18                 But there are roughly 500 bases out

         19  there.  And so we would have expected in 2004, as

         20  well as in 2003, and in 2002, that there would be

         21  roughly 250 stations renewed.  Their licenses

         22  renewed.  This year, we have to date, and it's the

         23  end of the year, basically, it's December 19th, we

         24  have only 150.  So we're still, 100 base stations

         25  are either being wiped out in New York City, or more
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          2  likely, they haven't been renewed yet.  In your own

          3  testimony earlier, some of them have had to renew

          4  since May.  And then by your testimony just now,

          5  Commissioner Daus, in some cases, these renewals

          6  have gone for two years without actually formally

          7  being renewed, and therefore properly licensed, but

          8  still operating in the neighborhoods.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm talking about

         10  going back years ago.  That hasn't happened recently

         11  to my knowledge.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So now, we've

         13  cut something down to about six months of being past

         14  the due date, is that --

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Mr. Chairman, I'd

         16  be happy to get you the specific details, we just

         17  don't have them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I know, but we're

         19  not asking for real esoteric information here.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You're asking for

         21  numbers that we just don't have with us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: This is an oversight

         23  hearing that was clearly communicated as a hearing

         24  that we would be looking at overall, the process by

         25  which the City licenses base stations, both new
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          2  stations as well as renewals.  We're not asking

          3  really difficult questions here.  So you can get us

          4  more precise answers later on if you'd like, but

          5  when I ask a question about what's the lag time?

          6  What kind of delays are we seeing right now?  There

          7  shouldn't be a need to come back to us later on with

          8  those kinds of answers.  They're pretty basic

          9  questions.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They are basic

         11  questions, I just don't have the answers.  We've

         12  been dealing with a lot of other issues outside of

         13  this scope, and I apologize for that.  With the

         14  transit strike.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: There's no need to

         16  apologize. We'll move forward with it.

         17                 So is it your testimony that, in

         18  2004, roughly, plus or minus 50, roughly 250 base

         19  stations were formerly approved by the Taxi and

         20  Limousine Commission?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I can't give an

         22  answer to that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Roughly how

         24  many base stations were approved by the Taxi and

         25  Limousine Commission in 2004.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: With all due

          3  respect, Mr. Chairman, I'd rather not speculate.

          4  I'd rather actually get you the raw numbers, which I

          5  can get to you today.  Just not now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Given that

          7  this year, 150 have been formerly approved, by your

          8  own testimony, by the Taxi and Limousine Commission,

          9  in 2004, were there more than 150, or less than 150?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't have the

         11  answer.  I'm sorry.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I apologize.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You don't need to

         15  apologize here. In 2004, were there more than 100

         16  applications that were formerly approved by the Taxi

         17  and Limousine Commission?

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I mean, with all

         19  due respect, I feel like I'm being cross- examined,

         20  and this is an oversight hearing, I should.  But I

         21  think it would be more productive if we could get

         22  you the actual numbers, and then it would answer

         23  every single question that you're asking me.  I'm

         24  going to have to say "no" to every single question

         25  that you're asking me in this line of questioning.
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          2  I'd rather not speculate, and I think that the

          3  Committee deserves more than speculation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, but if there

          5  are 500 base stations out there, and you can't even

          6  answer to me, in 2004 --

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I can't because

          8  it's not that simple, because of the delays that the

          9  bases take in getting back to us with the data.  The

         10  fact that we were reviewing this entire process from

         11  top to bottom, and the fact that the licensing

         12  process, due to the local law, takes so long, it's

         13  not as simple as cutting 500 in half and saying 250

         14  should be renewed within this year.  That's not the

         15  way it's been working.

         16                 To answer you question about an

         17  appropriate world, should that happen every year?

         18  Absolutely.  That's our goal.  Our goal is to have

         19  250 bases that deserve to be renewed, renewed during

         20  the year.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The base stations

         22  that, say, expired in, or the base stations for whom

         23  the licenses expired in May of this year, and have

         24  yet to be renewed formerly by, or have yet to have

         25  their renewal licenses formerly approved by the Taxi

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  and Limousine Commission today, six months later.

          3  Are those base stations operating within the law?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are they operating

          6  legally?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They're operating

          8  legally.  In fact, the Council had the foresight,

          9  when the law was first passed, to understand that it

         10  was a long process, and put a specific provision in

         11  the law that says you can continue to operate, even

         12  though your license hasn't been renewed.  A big

         13  distinction being between renewal of license of

         14  course, and a new license.  Which is a totally new

         15  undertaking and you can't operate until you're

         16  actually approved.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: A new, an

         18  application, a new application for a base station

         19  license, they cannot start running cars until they

         20  are formerly approved, voted on by the Taxi and

         21  Limousine Commission.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's correct.

         23  Before renewals, according to the Council's law, and

         24  our rules, you can continue to operate while your

         25  application is pending, as long as it's filed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is there no limit

          3  within which that renewal has to take place?  For

          4  example, can the station that is applying for a

          5  renewal continue to operate without end, so long as

          6  they're still within the process?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS?  My understanding

          8  is that there is no legal limitation, but part of

          9  what we've been doing with this process is to create

         10  boundaries, within our authority, so that it will

         11  move it along a lot more quickly.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Salkin, did you

         13  want to add something?

         14                 MR. SALKIN: The statement you just

         15  said is correct, and that's one of the reasons that

         16  we can't answer what happened in '04 and '03.  And

         17  typically, the response we got from bases when we

         18  were changing the process was, we used to just pay

         19  our money, and that used to be enough.  And what the

         20  Commission has said to us is that's not enough any

         21  more.  You need to show that you're actually capable

         22  of operating, that you're going to be a good

         23  neighbor, and that you're going to be a good

         24  complement to the community.

         25                 And that's been the big change.  And
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          2  so, the bases that are in May, the reason they have

          3  not been brought up to the Commission yet, is

          4  because they have not completed their application.

          5  It's not because the Commission has not done its

          6  work.  So that's the delay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But they are

          8  operating within the full letter of the law.

          9                 MR. SALKIN:  That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And is there, does

         11  the Taxi and Limousine Commission have an intent to,

         12  you said streamline the process, does that mean

         13  start putting some kind of time limit on these

         14  things, after which, they are still not complying

         15  with all of their requirements, that they would

         16  actually have to shut down their operations?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.  We've been

         18  doing that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What's the goal

         20  then?  The goal for the time period after the

         21  expiration of the current license?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The goal is, if

         23  the applicant does everything that the applicant

         24  needs to do, the next day, that we should get it

         25  before the Commission, at the next monthly meeting.
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          2  That is our goal.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, but there's

          4  still a  -- I mean, we're not saying that you have

          5  to shut the base station down the day after, but

          6  there's  --  my question is, if the license expires

          7  in May, and by the day that their license expires,

          8  they still have not met all the requirements for a

          9  formal renewal of their license, what's the Taxi and

         10  Limousine goal, given that there's no legal

         11  requirement?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: What you've just

         13  raised is exactly the debate that goes on in front

         14  of the Commission.  So as we bring up the bases, the

         15  Commission has been having a dialogue. And one of

         16  the dialogues has been, well a lot of the dialogue

         17  has been, well can we do this, can we do that?

         18  What's in the rules? What's in the oversight

         19  legislation?  And what we've been discussing is, we

         20  want everyone to be licensed and approved for

         21  renewal before their license is up.  And to do that,

         22  we've discussed putting in requirements that the

         23  base  -- just like we have with our driver licenses

         24   -- that if you don't fulfill your requirements

         25  before your license is up, then you're considered
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          2  suspended, or not in operation, or not in renewal.

          3                 And that's how this process should

          4  work.  But unfortunately, we've been practicing,

          5  because of the way the legislation is, the

          6  complexity of it, a different process.  And we have

          7  to kind of roll back and kind of move it where we'd

          8  like it to be.  So what we've been doing, in the

          9  process that we're currently following, is in

         10  compliance with the oversight legislation and the

         11  rules.  And what the Commission has been discussing

         12  is the improvements that we're interested in making,

         13  that would have to follow a rule- making process,

         14  but it's not something that's been determined on at

         15  this time, because this is kind of all new.

         16                 But ideally, I think you're

         17  highlighting this point, is all bases should be

         18  approved before their license expires. That's our

         19  goal.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.  Based on

         21  your testimony, though, you're saying that the law

         22  that the Council passed, I guess it was many years

         23  ago at this point  --  roughly, when was that? Was

         24  it in the early 90s?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No, it had to be
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          2  in the mid 90s, I believe.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  The mid 90s.

          4  Based on that law, it seems like there's not a real,

          5  there's no real urgency for a base station to

          6  properly renew their licenses.  So it almost renders

          7  the two- year period almost insignificant.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's a fair

          9  statement.  And we're trying to do what we can

         10  within the boundaries of the law and the rules to

         11  speed it up administratively.  And if there are

         12  things that we can do legislatively, and rule wise,

         13  to make it even tighter, we'd like to do that.

         14                 And like Andy said, our goal is, as

         15  I'm sure you share this goal, you should be ready to

         16  go by the time your renewal is up.  But right now,

         17  it's hard to really see the fruits of our labor

         18  because there's a lot of labor- intensive effort

         19  going on with our staff to just catch up, and put

         20  the new forms in place, and instruct  -- a lot of

         21  times, as opposed to processing applications, is

         22  going into training the base applicants right now

         23  with this new process.

         24                 But next year, I'm hopeful that we

         25  will see more expedited applications, and the
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          2  industry will know what they need to do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Earlier, you

          4  mentioned a number of things, like impact on local

          5  traffic and quality of life issues. And that all

          6  goes into the application for a renewal license.  As

          7  well as a new license.  But what about insurance

          8  requirements, vehicle maintenance, those kinds of

          9  requirements that in our opinion relate more to

         10  public safety?   What happens to --  if the base

         11  stations are not being properly renewed within every

         12  two- year period, what happens to those requirements

         13  that affect public safety, and not just quality of

         14  life?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's an entirely

         16  separate process.  We have three types of licenses

         17  that we issue in the For Hire industry: The base

         18  license, which is the business license which we're

         19  discussing here today; the vehicle owner's license,

         20  which includes the insurance requirements.  One of

         21  the things you have to show in order to license your

         22  vehicle, wherever that might be, and you could

         23  affiliate with any base that you'd like, we have a

         24  separate process to check that you have the

         25  appropriate levels of insurance, and if you don't
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          2  have them, we'll take action against you directly.

          3  That happens with our enforcement and our licensing

          4  staff on a year- round basis.

          5                 In terms of the driver requirements,

          6  it's a separate driver's license that deals with

          7  drug testing, criminal background checks et cetera.

          8                 So when you're coming down to it, the

          9  base is being responsible for how it operates in the

         10  community.  Does it cause congestion by having off-

         11  street parking?  Does it meet the financial

         12  requirements of having a base?  Does it post a bond

         13  that's supposed to  -- Do the officers of the

         14  corporation have a criminal history that requires

         15  some type of review?  Those are the issues that we

         16  look at with the bases.

         17                 When it comes to other public safety

         18  issues, including inspections, insurance, the

         19  quality of the driver, and whether the driver is

         20  safe, those are separately enforced under different

         21  processes.  Still held accountable, Mr. Chairman,

         22  for the activities of the vehicles, and we look at

         23  that under --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But does that mean

         25  that the most --  does that mean that the base
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          2  station licensing basically addresses business and

          3  community issues, and that the public safety-

          4  related issues are addressed in the other forms of

          5  licensing, the licensing of the vehicle owner as

          6  well as the driver?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No, they both

          8  address public safety.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So there are public

         10  safety issues addressed within the base station

         11  licensing.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's right in

         13  terms of whether you're a responsible owner that's

         14  taking affirmative steps to try to curb practices.

         15  Now, we immediately with the public safety issue.

         16  If someone doesn't have insurance, we deal with them

         17  immediately on the street.  The individual driver

         18  and vehicle owner are dealt with.

         19                 You lose your license if you

         20  basically test positive to drugs after a hearing.

         21  But, what we're starting to look at now, is what's

         22  the big picture?  There are conceivably 100 drivers

         23  that may have lost their licenses because they're

         24  doing something wrong. What we're doing now is,

         25  we're looking more closely at the base license's
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          2  record.  We're going to be looking at, for instance,

          3  are all of those 100 drivers under one base.

          4  Hypothetically, if they are, that base has a real

          5  issue.  I mean, it doesn't really happen that way,

          6  but I think legally, we can hold the bases, and we

          7  are now, holding them responsible for making changes

          8  to their records. And making them improve the way

          9  they do business by policing their drivers better.

         10                 Some bases are not as on top of their

         11  game as others are.  So it does have a public safety

         12  issue, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We have questions

         14  from other Committee Members.  I will just say one

         15  more thing.  Which is, and ask one more quick

         16  question.  Which is that a lot of your testimony

         17  talks about how the TLC is working to ensure greater

         18  accountability with the base stations and therefore,

         19  make sure that the interaction with the public at

         20  large is more positive.  There are others who say

         21  that the TLC is making some changes or perhaps in

         22  the past, have had some policies that are

         23  questionable.  My last question to you is, in 2004,

         24  did the Taxi and Limousine Commission approve a

         25  renewal application for a base station?  In 2004,
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          2  did the Taxi and Limousine Commission approve an

          3  application for renewal of a base station license.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I am sure that the

          5  agency has sent renewals over to the Council.  Did

          6  the Commission --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm asking what I

          8  think is a very simple question.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.  The answer

         10  is yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the --

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: To my knowledge,

         13  the renewals came over that were approved by the

         14  agency that came to the answer, the answer is "yes".

         15    And we'll double and triple check that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We know you sent a

         17  lot of things over to the City Council, but the

         18  question is, did the Taxi and Limousine Commission

         19  approve at least one --

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It sounds like you

         21  know something that I don't know.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No.  I'm just asking

         23  you here. Because it was too precise to ask a

         24  question about 250, it was too precise to ask if it

         25  was more than 100.  So I'm just trying to  --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Are you asking

          3  whether the Board, the Commission --  The Commission

          4  did not.  The agency did.  The agency staff  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's my question.

          6  I said very clearly, did the Taxi and Limousine

          7  Commission approve a base station renewal in 2004?

          8  The answer is "no".

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I apologize.

         10  Sometimes we refer to the Commission as the Board,

         11  the agency.  It's a little confusing.  I am sure  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So it's all done at

         13  the staff level, is what you're saying.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's why we

         15  changed it.  Yes. Since the inception of this

         16  process, when the law was passed, the Council and

         17  the TLC staff worked out an arrangement where things

         18  would go directly to the Mayor's Office of Leg

         19  Affairs, which then came here.  Then the Nathan

         20  Reilly review would start, and then the matters

         21  would be voted on.  That part of the process has

         22  gone on for years, until recently, we started taking

         23  a look at making the process better, as I promised

         24  and pledged to all of you that we would do in every

         25  aspect of what we do.  And as a result, we felt that
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          2  it would be more appropriate for us to go by the

          3  letter of the spirit of what the Council wanted, and

          4  get the Board, which has five Council appointees on

          5  it, involved in making these serious decisions.

          6                 With all due respect, even though we

          7  have hard working, excellent staff, I think that

          8  whether a base should be licensed should be

          9  something that is not delegated to staff, that

         10  should be dealt with by the Board.  If it's serious

         11  enough for the full Council to pass a law every time

         12  a base station is licensed, I think it's serious

         13  enough, in my view, for the Board of Commissioners

         14  to have a review of each and every one of these

         15  bases.  That's why --  I hope that answers your

         16  question.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Council

         18  Member Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you Mr.

         20  Chair.  Good morning.  I'm going to be very brief,

         21  because I'll just move into another direction.  One,

         22  I think the changes that you are making are

         23  necessary, and you are to be commended that you are

         24  doing it. I think that we probably thought that it

         25  wasn't happening fast enough.
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          2                 In terms of asking for the letters

          3  that you do, I was not aware that you were

          4  requesting it from the Council Members. I'm just

          5  not.  I don't think we received anything in the

          6  office. You've mentioned the Borough President.

          7  You've mentioned the Community Boards.  And since it

          8  stops with us, I think that there should be some

          9  check to be sure that we have.

         10                 I'm suggesting, and I don't know if

         11  it's possible, but each of us should know how many

         12  base stations we have in our districts.  That's

         13  number one.  I don't think that's difficult to do.

         14  Secondly, when the base stations are up for renewal,

         15  if your system allows for that, you should, the

         16  staff should just alert us that those stations are

         17  coming up for renewal.  We know now that they're

         18  approved by the Board, and then actually, I think

         19  it's up to us to give you the feedback from the

         20  police and the Community Board as to any complaints

         21  if they have.  Because certainly from my office, and

         22  in my office, one of the reasons I urge for some

         23  revision on this, was because the system, and not

         24  what you had, but the base stations hire reckless

         25  drivers.  There have been abuses in the system.  And
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          2  certainly, in my office, which, I have to say, you

          3  well know, is the transportation hub in western

          4  Queens.  Not only is every bus to the airport, but

          5  not to mention every subway system that you can get

          6  from there.

          7                 I know it had been proposed, and I

          8  don't know if that's happened, as to a base station

          9  perhaps near the terminal. The new terminal that is

         10  not completed yet.  I would think that when that

         11  happens it goes out  --  and I don't' know, but

         12  that's something that we could discuss and not from

         13  here.

         14                 Secondly, it would be very helpful if

         15  we just had a sheet because we're talking about a

         16  very big thing in districts. How many get licensed

         17  for what?  For instance, getting a license for the

         18  vehicle, the driver.  That's one thing.   A license

         19  for the base station is another.  And I don't think

         20  any of us should confuse that.  So it certainly

         21  would help, because I think, when drivers come in,

         22  there's a whole confusion.  They may be speaking

         23  about their own.  It may be a base- related issue.

         24  And I don't think it would be much for us to just be

         25  clear, for ourselves, on that.  And I think that
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          2  would help a great deal.

          3                 And to finish, just one other thing.

          4  For the environmental study, for the new base

          5  stations, and I recognize the importance of that,

          6  but tell me, how do they find out who will do it for

          7  them?  How will they find out who is certified to do

          8  it? Because I assume you accept only certified.

          9  Okay.  Explain that to me.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.  We give them

         11  information that they need to know on the website,

         12  which includes the possibility of them doing it

         13  themselves if they want to.  There's a sample that

         14  we put on the website.  But they can hire help.

         15                 I guess you're suggesting that we

         16  have --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I tell

         18  you, if you were to tell me that I needed that, and

         19  I didn't know anything about how to do it, --

         20  because I know, I've had to work in transportation,

         21  and read them, and had to have proposed some

         22  amendments to them. Most people do not know that,

         23  Commissioner, and as a result, it seems for them to

         24  do it, which is almost like a self certification,

         25  which I have to tell you, I have problems with.  I
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          2  think everybody in the Council to some degree, has

          3  had problems with self certification.  So it would

          4  seem that if there was a pool that they could call

          5  upon to that.  For instance, if you had to take

          6  western Queens, and you know where we're located.

          7  There is a study going on that's over $600,000 that

          8  is coming from the Federal Government, because the

          9  Brooklyn/Queens Expressway, the terminal, et cetera,

         10  this study is being done, and environmentally, a big

         11  part of that study.  It would seem, that if any base

         12  stations are due for renewal, or there is a new one,

         13  which may be considered for that, they should, if we

         14  knew when they were coming up, or who is new, this

         15  is how agencies connect together.  They would be

         16  able to have the input, what they're doing, and be

         17  able to be helped by that EIS.

         18                 So, as a result, there are things out

         19  there that would help them to deal with what I think

         20  is a very professional component of what you're

         21  asking new bases to do.  And it seems to me to be

         22  left to their own devices, it's not that it's

         23  unfair, it seems that how would they even know how

         24  to do that.

         25                 I would think that most base stations
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          2  are at a loss to hire somebody that does the DEIS.

          3  Not even a DEIS, an EIS.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.  If I could

          5  just respond.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I realize

          7  that's a mouthful.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well first, that's

          9  okay, I give a mouthful myself sometimes.  Mr.

         10  Chairman knows.

         11                 Number one, first, thank you for

         12  encouraging us on what we're doing.  We're thankful

         13  for that.  We're thankful for your comments.

         14  Number one, in terms of the base stations in the

         15  Council district, as many of you may remember, when

         16  you were first elected, I visited each and every one

         17  of you individually, and part of that orientation I

         18  gave you a list of each and every  --  of a map,

         19  basically of your district with the bases.  Now,

         20  that has changed, and I don't believe it's been

         21  updated.  So it's a good suggestion.  And with all

         22  that's going on, we will do that immediately.

         23                 We've already actually done that in

         24  response to some meetings we've had, I believe, with

         25  the Borough Presidents and the Community Boards.
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          2  And I think that once we --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You know, but

          4  we're not the Borough President.  We're not the

          5  Community Board.  So somehow, I stress that to

          6  constituents, because the bottom line is, that we're

          7  the legislators.  So I urge you not to leave out the

          8  City Council.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Absolutely not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I know you

         11  don't, but it seems when you mention the others,

         12  none of them are legislators, and we are.  So it

         13  seems that that information would help us a lot.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.  And we

         15  will try to put that together for you.

         16                 I just have a question, actually, for

         17  clarification. You had mentioned that we work to

         18  have better notification to the Council Members, and

         19  I was just wondering if you meant that, or are

         20  suggesting that the Council Members coordinate with

         21  the precincts and the Community Boards and then get

         22  back to us.  Is that  --  as opposed to us having

         23  the bases go to each  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It seems to me

         25  that one process needs to be really reduced.  And
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          2  you've got a Community Board, you have a Police

          3  Precinct, and you have the Council.  I have to tell

          4  you, I think that's cumbersome.  Because each one

          5  will deal with it in a certain way.  Do not have the

          6  eyes that we have to have when it comes to either

          7  mending legislation or approving it.  They don't

          8  look at it that way.  The police will just give you

          9  a report if somebody had a major problem.  Community

         10  Board will go at some of the complaints they've had

         11  by constituents.

         12                 I don't know, I could be wrong on

         13  this, but it would seem, if we know when a base

         14  station is coming up for renewal, and I don't know,

         15  can't speak for every other Council Member, but I

         16  would think that if my office made a call to a

         17  Community Board, which we do very frequently, and we

         18  also found out from the police, we're not signing

         19  off on them.  But we certainly could tell you, and

         20  from what our office has received, we could reduce

         21  the time that it takes to do that.  Now that's

         22  assuming a lot, but I don't know.  And I will not

         23  speak for other Council Members.  It's not a lot for

         24  my office.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We'd certainly be
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          2  willing to explore that concept.

          3                 And on the last issue we would like

          4  to discuss further with you, the EIS, and we want to

          5  make this as simple as possible.  I just want to

          6  point out, we're not requesting that they perform an

          7  Environmental Impact Statement.  We're requesting

          8  that they do an EAS, and Environmental Assessment,

          9  which will help us determine whether there's an

         10  environmental impact --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: They need help

         12  to do that.

         13  I can tell you the Dispatchers don't know how to do

         14  that.  Neither does the owner of a base station.

         15  You're asking for a certain professional component

         16  for the licensing process.  So what I'm suggesting

         17  is that they need assistance for that professional

         18  component.  Maybe there's a pool, and I'm not being

         19  very constructive.  But maybe there might be a pool

         20  of people who do that.  That are certified.  Maybe

         21  they need to be certified by your agency.  That you

         22  would accept such a study.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: If we can legally

         24  do that, we would like to look into the

         25  possibilities.  But just so you know, I don't want
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          2  you to have the impression that we did that without

          3  trying to offer some advice.  If you look on our

          4  website --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We have a "How To"

          7  guide on how to complete an environmental assessment

          8  that's step by step.  It's about nine pages.  And we

          9  also actually put a sample technical analysis there.

         10    So while your point is well taken, there may be

         11  additional ways to do that, but I just want to make

         12  sure you understand that we've put a lot of time

         13  into trying to explain the legal requirements.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think you've

         15  tried to do a lot.  I do.  And I think certainly,

         16  the system is better than it is.  But I do think

         17  that something falls onto non- professionals that

         18  may be difficult for them to do.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Point well taken.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I think

         21  they need help. Thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         23    At this point, we had actually been long joined by

         24  Council Member James Sanders, from Queens.  And at

         25  this point, I'd like to ask him if he'd like to cast
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          2  a ballot on Intro. No. 495- A.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes sir.  I too

          4  do not want to cause any wakes, so therefore, I vote

          5  aye.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Ouch.  Okay.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 Thank you Council Member Sears.  We

          9  have questions from Council Member Reyna.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 Good morning Chairman Daus.  I wanted

         13  to just take an opportunity to appreciate the

         14  quality of life balance that you're trying to

         15  provide here for communities, both as far as the

         16  bases are concerned, as well as the communities in

         17  which they, and from which they operate.

         18                 But I'm concerned, because this

         19  process seems to be getting, becoming more lengthy

         20  as far as the burden of providing documents that

         21  perhaps, on your end, are difficult to acquire, and

         22  keep up to current status, with so many base

         23  applications.  But even more so, difficult on base

         24  stations to acquire.  And at the end of the day, how

         25  do we create the balance where we're not putting
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          2  business out business?  In a timely fashion?

          3                 In your testimony, you referred to

          4  streamlined application.  And when I take a look at

          5  this document, it doesn't seem to be streamlined.

          6  Perhaps because the previous application was

          7  lengthier, you're considering this one streamlined.

          8  So just help me appreciate the fact that this is

          9  streamlined.  How many pages were the new For Hire

         10  stations base license applications? How many pages?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't recall the

         12  exact number of pages, but it was lengthier.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.  Then I

         14  have to tell you, I consider this just as lengthy.

         15  And there are specific documents that are being

         16  brought upon the base station operators that just

         17  seem to need to be particularly dealing with DMV.

         18  Particularly dealing with the fact that I have a

         19  protocol in my office, when there's a base station

         20  application, whether that's renewal or new license,

         21  we check with our local precinct, as well as our

         22  Community Boards to find out if there have been any

         23  documentation or complaints against this particular

         24  base station. And I agree with my colleague, Council

         25  Member Sears, as far as making sure that, because
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          2  there's an  --  it seems to me that you were

          3  expressing how there's an option.  You can opt to go

          4  to your Council Member.  And you can opt to go to

          5  your --

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You mean to

          7  coordinate.  I think that's what Council Member

          8  Sears  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: To comply with

         10  the EAS.  As far as the EAS of the proposed base

         11  station location, the portion where you refer to in

         12  your testimony, that now these applications the

         13  applicant must, is further required to request

         14  written comments from the Council Member, Community

         15  Board, and Police Precinct.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.  Let me  --

         17  maybe there's been a misunderstanding.  Just let me

         18  clarify that.  The EAS has nothing to do with the

         19  Council Member.  That's something that the applicant

         20  fills out separately, apart from the Council

         21  Member's involvement.  In the past, what would

         22  happen, is the TLC would do all the work that the

         23  applicant is supposed to be doing.  I mean, the law

         24  clearly places the burden of proof on the applicant.

         25    Not the burden on the government to go out there
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          2  and do all the work for the applicant.

          3                 But we used to do that for the bases,

          4  and it caused a lot of administrative issues for us.

          5    Actually, not only us sending out the letters to

          6  the Council Members, the Community Boards, and the

          7  Police Precincts, but us getting on the phone

          8  several times to try to prompt a response, because

          9  people just would not respond to us.

         10                 So to try to make the process easier,

         11  and to have some more accountability, and to have

         12  the bases deal with the community, we basically just

         13    --  the biggest change in the process that most

         14  people and elected officials, and others have been

         15  complaining about is the fact that we're now just,

         16  instead of us just sending the letter, the base is

         17  responsible for sending the letter and getting a

         18  letter of no objection or some comments from the

         19  people that the law requires it to.

         20                 The precinct is not required by law.

         21  But the Community Board and the City Council are

         22  required to give, be given notice about this.  And

         23  we could basically, very simply, just close up shop,

         24  and follow the letter of the law and say, here's

         25  your application, Council Member.  If we don't hear
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          2  from you, so be it. Instead, we make sure that we

          3  hold the record open until we hear from the

          4  community.

          5                 I mean, if you read the law, that's

          6  what it says. And Council Member, we're certainly

          7  open to exploring reducing and looking at the

          8  necessity for the various requirements.  I mean,

          9  some are, and maybe some can be looked at.  But

         10  these are all not coming from us.  They're coming

         11  from the local law.  Every single one of those items

         12  that you're referring to in the application, the

         13  long list, are all coming from the Administrative

         14  Code.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And this was

         16  not done before? Letters A through U.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It was done

         18  before, but it was less confusing.  It's less

         19  confusing now.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Now it's more

         21  confusing.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.  It's less

         23  confusing now.  It was more confusing before, the

         24  way the applications looked, they really weren't as

         25  good question and answer and informational

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  instructional guides as we have now.  But if you're

          3  talking about reducing the items that are on that

          4  list, you're talking about amending legislation.

          5  You're talking about off- street parking

          6  requirements.  You're talking about bonds.  You're

          7  talking about zoning.  You're talking about

          8  financial disclosure.  You're talking about

          9  information about the records.  A plan to utilize

         10  off- street parking.  Clearance from the New York

         11  Department of State.  The City Charter.

         12  Administrative Code.  Criminal history background

         13  checks.  You're talking about --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: This was part

         15  of the law before?  The criminal backgrounds?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It still is.  But

         17  we believe, as much as it may seem onerous to some

         18  of the operators, we believe that it's more easily

         19  presented than it was in the past, with this new

         20  application.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But the

         22  application is not anything new, you're saying.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So all these

         25  items had to be provided to you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They did before,

          3  and they do now. The only thing that's really new,

          4  Council Member, is the Comprehensive Operating Plan,

          5  where we're asking you to synthesize, in some

          6  instances, in a more simple way, a lot of these

          7  legal requirements so that we can analyze them

          8  better, and more quickly and more effectively.  If

          9  you can put in your Comprehensive Operating Plan,

         10  boom, off- street parking.  This is how --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You're talking

         12  about format.            COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         13  It's all about format.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So now, there's

         15  a format that base station applications need to

         16  follow for you to process.

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: A better format,

         18  we believe. There was an old format, now there's a

         19  new one.  We believe this one's better  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So nothing new

         21  is being required, other than an actual categorized

         22  format.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: For the most part,

         24  that's correct.  In terms of --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So what is new,
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          2  because you're saying "for the most part".

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And I'll refer to

          4  our industry notes, which I'll be happy to send you

          5  as well.  I should have included it.  Basically,  --

          6    I'll read it --  "Effective immediately, the TLC

          7  has now newly designed applications for new bases,

          8  renewals, base relocations, and change of ownership

          9  status, which is accompanied by a clear and simple

         10  instruction package." So this is a form issue.

         11   "One.  The TLC will no longer be responsible for

         12  obtaining the following documents.  They must be

         13  obtained by the applicant, directly from the

         14  appropriate entity".

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So that's new.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's  --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It's new

         18  Chairman, because it was never part of the

         19  application process.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's not new.

         21  It's just a matter of who's getting --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: As far as

         23  licensing was concerned, on behalf of the applicant

         24  providing it.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The only thing
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          2  that's new is who's getting it from whom.  The

          3  information  --  we used to do it ourselves.  Now

          4  we're asking the base applicant, consistent with the

          5  law, was the burden of proving to us that they're

          6  entitled to a license, to get clearance from, and

          7  comments from the PD, the Council Member's office,

          8  and the Community Board.  And opposed to us getting

          9  on the phone with the Department of State.  It's the

         10  applicant's application.  If you fill out an

         11  application to get a license, it's your obligation

         12  to get the paperwork from the Department of State,

         13  showing that you're a valid corporation.

         14                 And the third requirement is

         15  clearance from the New York City Criminal Court for

         16  all five boroughs.  So this is information  --  the

         17  one change, we're not asking for anything new in

         18  terms of the law.  We're asking, instead of the TLC

         19  staff doing it, the applicant should do it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: So that the TLC

         22  staff can do what they need to do, in processing the

         23  applications more quickly and for the owners to

         24  basically do it themselves.  So, I hope that answers

         25  the question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It certainly

          3  does, but I hope that you can value what I'm saying.

          4    It's new to the process, on behalf of the

          5  applicant.  And in order to get clearance from DMV,

          6  and well as the courts, I would consider that alone

          7  to be the most extensive portion.  To navigate those

          8  two systems, are close to impossible, on behalf of

          9  an applicant.

         10                 You're an agency that's independent,

         11  but with authority.  I'd imagine that you would have

         12  more accessibility to these two systems as opposed

         13  to an individual applicant.  And I want to ask you,

         14  have you test run this particular request from

         15  applicants, by applying yourself, as an individual.

         16  Like just a phantom base application, through these

         17  two systems, to find out what would be the time

         18  period for a response?  So that at least you're not

         19  just putting the onus on these base applications

         20  just to reduce the administrative cost as well as

         21  duties on behalf of your department.  Because it

         22  just seems to me like this is going to  -- if it

         23  took a long time to process applications back then,

         24  I can't imagine what it's going take now.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the staff

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  has reported that it's doing a lot better from our

          3  standpoint.  I mean, we realize that it is basically

          4  going to require more work by the bases.  But that

          5  was contemplated as part of the policy decision.

          6  With the limited staff that we have doing this work,

          7  my preference as an Administrator  --   and you're

          8  presenting a totally valid contrary view point  --

          9  is to apply the way the law reads strictly, that we

         10  basically put the burden on the applicant to prove

         11  that they're entitled to a license.

         12                 I mean, basically, you know, we end

         13  up being somewhat hired staff for the bases, in some

         14  respects.  Because we're doing the work that they

         15  should be doing in order to fill out the

         16  application.  We've done that to be helpful in the

         17  past.  But ultimately, what happens, Council Member,

         18  is that we get backlogged if that happens.  If we

         19  can look at every little thing that we do to try to

         20  reduce the paperwork and work together with the

         21  bases, and they can get accustomed to doing it, I

         22  think that's the best way that we can get these

         23  applications processed more quickly.

         24                 You're representing a very, very

         25  valid contrary viewpoint.  That's the way we used to
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          2  do it before.  The whole reason we changed it is to

          3  reduce  --  one of the reasons  --  is to reduce the

          4  paperwork on our end, so that our limited staff can

          5  do more of the analysis and recommendations in

          6  putting together the package for the Commissioners

          7  to review.

          8                 So, I mean, if there's some

          9  roadblocks that your constituents are encountering,

         10  we would be happy to sit down and discuss those with

         11  you so that if there is something that makes sense

         12  for us to do instead, that we'll take a fresh look

         13  at it.

         14                 But we've been getting pretty good

         15  feedback, by the way, from some of the bases.  There

         16  are some that object.  And you know, we're hearing a

         17  lot of rumbling and complaints from some of the

         18  governmental bodies that, you know, like the

         19  Community Boards, for instance.  Why are you doing

         20  this now?  Or what's new?  The bottom line is that

         21  some of them are complaining, quite frankly, because

         22  they didn't know where this work was coming from.

         23  Well, that's the whole point.  The law said that you

         24  were supposed to have input before on behalf of your

         25  constituents, but some people were basically were
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          2  telling us, this is the first we're hearing of it.

          3  Well, hello.  That's the good thing.  We're trying

          4  to shake the system up, and want the community to be

          5  aware of who is operating within their boundaries.

          6                 Now, everybody has a different

          7  viewpoint on this. There's no question about it.  I

          8  don't know how much of this we're going to solve,

          9  but if there are particular roadblocks that your

         10  people are having  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I will monitor

         12  that, Mr. Chair.  And I just want to be able to

         13  express the scenario that I've just shared with you,

         14  because it just seems to me like navigating DMV for

         15  approval of a base station application, as well as

         16  the courts, would be close to impossible for an

         17  applicant with no authority.

         18                 MR. SALKIN: Could we just clarify

         19  that DMV issue? I just want to offer, just for

         20  example, Councilwoman, what we have found is that

         21  the base has a much better ability of getting their

         22  own information than we do.  I mean, for example, to

         23  get Criminal Court clearance, they can go online,

         24  just fill out a form, and it's done.  For us, it's a

         25  matter of intergovernmental relations, and us going
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          2  back and forth.  So for the base to provide that

          3  information, it's very easy.

          4                 As far as the DMV requirements that

          5  you're asking, I'm not sure to be a base, you don't

          6  have any DMV requirements. It's the vehicles

          7  themselves, and the drivers, that have DMV

          8  requirements.  And that's how that goes.

          9                 I think one of the things that the

         10  Chairman's trying to point out  --  and this is

         11  something that we're very willing to work with this

         12  Committee, or any committee on is, there are

         13  requirements outlined in the Administrative Code

         14  that we have to follow.  And if we feel that they

         15  are overburdensome, or if you feel they're

         16  overburdensome, or don't necessarily mean that

         17  someone's going to be a good base or a bad base,

         18  we'd be happy to review that.  And perhaps come up

         19  with a package that better defines what a base

         20  should be.  And then we could change the rules, we

         21  could bring up to the Commission, changing the rules

         22  to reflect that or work with the Ad Code and do a

         23  comprehensive package.

         24                 Unfortunately, we're there at this

         25  time.  We have to follow as the law states, and as
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          2  the rules state.  And the process that we're using

          3  right now is within those boundaries.  Anything

          4  beyond that, we'd have to go some through some rule

          5  making.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just want to

          7  find out, because I'm trying to understand the

          8  criminal activity portion.  It just seems to me like

          9  that was a new portion to the application. Perhaps

         10  because now it's falling on behalf of the applicant

         11  to provide information. It seems like it's new.

         12  What indicators were used to identify a problem as

         13  far as base station applicants in relation to

         14  criminal activities in the past to have to do this?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, that's

         16  something that is set forth, I believe, in the City

         17  Charter.  I mean, in the --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What would

         19  qualify as a criminal activity as far as not

         20  approving an application?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, there's a

         22  section of the State law that applies.  Section 752

         23  of the New York State Corrections Law says that if

         24  anyone, including the TLC issues a license or is

         25  looking to hire somebody as an employee, cannot, it
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          2  would be discrimination if you were to automatically

          3  deny someone employment or a license based upon the

          4  fact that they have a criminal investigation, a

          5  criminal conviction, unless you've actually done a

          6  case- by- case analysis of a variety of factors set

          7  forth in the statute.

          8                 Of course, that can be superseded and

          9  preempted by various other laws.  For instance,

         10  irrespective of the Corrections Law, I believe the

         11  VTL, the Vehicle and Traffic Law, makes it clear

         12  that certainly criminal offenses that happen within

         13  a certain timeframe for bus operators.  Like DWI,

         14  and so forth, shall serve as an absolute bar to a

         15  license.

         16                 We don't have any such legal

         17  restrictions in State law.  So basically, we deal

         18  with the Corrections Law, which says that if we find

         19  out that an applicant, lets say, had a conviction

         20  for DWI, and their trying to --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: A base station

         22  applicant?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Let's say a base

         24  station applicant, the principal, had a conviction

         25  for fraud, and racketeering.  We would give them a
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          2  hearing that they're entitled to, and do a case- by-

          3  case analysis of how long was that conviction --

          4  some of the factors under the statute are how long

          5  the conviction was, the relationship or the nexus

          6  between the conviction and the act of what you're

          7  trying to be licensed for, which is operating a

          8  base.  Whether you have any evidence of

          9  rehabilitation.  Whether you have a Certificate of

         10  Relief from disabilities.  There are all different

         11  factors under the statute, and we apply those laws

         12  on a case- by- case basis.

         13                 So to answer your question, if you're

         14  convicted of a crime, it doesn't mean that you're

         15  automatically barred from getting a license.  It

         16  means that it prompts a further inquiry by the

         17  agency, where you would have the ability to go

         18  before one of our administrative judges and explain

         19  why you believe that you're fit to have a license.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just want to

         21  share with you that the industry we're referring to

         22  is not a cookie- cutter industry.  And so, you have

         23  base stations that have applications that perhaps

         24  have two partners.  Or you have For Hire situations

         25  where a base station is operated with shareholders,
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          2  of 200 people. How do you deal with a situation

          3  where a business plan is supposed to acquire

          4  documents for 200 people versus 2 people?

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, it doesn't

          6  require that -- see, we look at the cars and the

          7  drivers through a separate process.  The base

          8  process just --  we're just looking  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm not

         10  referring to drivers. I'm referring to  --

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Oh, you're

         12  referring to Black Car cooperatives.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: No.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'm not sure what

         15  you're referring to.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You have base

         17  stations that have shareholders.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: That are

         20  drivers.  They're investors.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We look at the

         22  principals of the organization.  The corporate

         23  principals.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So the

         25  principals  -- you've never encountered where you
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          2  have principals that are more than just two people,

          3  an executive board?  You would look at the executive

          4  board basically if there's ownership of 200

          5  shareholders?  You don't request it from 200

          6  shareholders.  You just request if from the

          7  executive board, that's  --

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My understanding

          9  is that we don't look at every single shareholder in

         10  a corporation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Your

         12  understanding of the law, or your understanding of

         13  your rule?

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: My understanding

         15  of the process. My understanding is that we look at

         16  the partners in the partnership.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.  But you

         18  have partners that are comprised of not just an

         19  executive board.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I understand your

         21  point.  I don't believe that we look at the

         22  shareholders individually.  I have not heard or seen

         23  of a base that has hundreds of shareholders.  We'll

         24  look into that and get back to you.  I mean, it's a

         25  fair point.  If there's a base that operates that
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          2  way, should we be looking into every one?

          3                 I could tell you one scenario where I

          4  know that does happen.  If you're a Black Car

          5  cooperative, if you're a Black Car base, you have to

          6  either be a franchise or a cooperative.  A

          7  cooperative basically, legally, is defined as people

          8  who own shares in the corporation.  And there are

          9  some Black Care bases that the drivers, the way it's

         10  set up, are part of the cooperative.  So each one of

         11  them buys in and owns shares.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Each person.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes, but not part

         14  of the base application process.  We check each one

         15  of those vehicle owner/drivers  --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Just as far as

         17  the application process is concerned, for base

         18  application.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We don't need to

         20  because we get those individuals individually.  If

         21  you're a vehicle owner/driver, we will look at your

         22  criminal history, and find you through a separate

         23  process.  We don't need to look at your Black Car

         24  base because we've already, when you got your

         25  vehicle and drivers license  --.  But that's the way
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          2  the industry operates.  And you know, there's a lot

          3  of --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm sorry

          5  Chairman.  I just want to be able to  --  we can

          6  always --  you say you're going to look into that?

          7  I'm satisfied with that answer.  I just don't want

          8  to take away time from my colleagues who want to ask

          9  questions, but I do have two more questions.

         10                 I want to just --  I'd like to figure

         11  out what was the processing timeframe prior to the

         12  streamlining of this application.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Do we have the

         14  processing time?              We have some numbers.

         15                 MR. SALKIN: Processing time to

         16  complete the application  --  again, I think we had

         17  the conversation with the -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So again,

         19  that's the answer?

         20                 MR. SALKIN: But I have some updated

         21  numbers to give you a sense of how it would look.

         22  In 2004, 247 bases submitted payment for renewal,

         23  and 130 of those bases were forwarded as  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Two hundred and

         25  forty --
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          2                 MR. SALKIN: Two hundred and forty

          3  seven paid renewal.  One hundred and thirty were

          4  approved by staff.

          5                 In 2005, 220 have paid renewal, and

          6  179 have been approved by the Commission.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: What happens to

          8  the rest of the applicants who have paid, but have

          9  not completed  --

         10                 MR. SALKIN: They would roll until

         11  they get renewed, or  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Until meaning

         13  three months? Ninety days?

         14                 MR. SALKIN: Again, a lot of the

         15  reason for renewal in the past delay, is based on

         16  the applicant's inability to complete the

         17  application.  And since we didn't have a clear

         18  process to say, you've been given enough time, these

         19  would drag on and on and on.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And this

         21  application process was effective when?

         22                 MR. SALKIN: This went into effect in

         23  January.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: In January of

         25  this year?

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 MR. SALKIN: That's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So judging from

          4  your application process, you're improving slightly,

          5  but not significantly as far as numbers compared to

          6  this year and last year.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's still too

          8  early to tell, because I think, you know, as we get

          9  through these numbers, and the staff and the

         10  Commissioner get more familiar with what we're doing

         11  after we play catch up, I think, next year, mid way

         12  through next year, we'll have a really good handle

         13  on where we are and where we should be.

         14                 But Chairman Liu, you had asked

         15  repeatedly, and these are the numbers I think you're

         16  looking for.  In 2004, 130 of 247 applications were

         17  processed.  In 2005, 179 out of 220 who had paid.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I didn't ask for how

         19  many were processed.  I asked for how many stations

         20  were approved.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's the same

         22  number.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's the same thing?

         24

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: That's 179
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          2  approved.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But earlier you said

          4  they were approved by staff.  Last year.

          5                 MR. SALKIN: The process in 2004 was a

          6  staff approval.  No Commission approval.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Isn't that different

          8  from Commission approval?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.  And that's

         10  the change that was made in the application process.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I wanted to

         12  ask, as my final question, and I'll monitor this as

         13  an individual Council Member, personally, with you,

         14  Chairman.  But I'm getting feedback from the

         15  industry, specifically independent drivers, that

         16  supposedly, they're not able to insure their cars

         17  because they're being requested to have a recent

         18  model year if they want to get insured in the

         19  business.  Is this feedback that you're receiving?

         20  Whether that's through your agency and/or the

         21  Commission?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I haven't heard

         23  that, but we'd be happy to learn more about that.

         24  I'd love to chat with you about that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Fantastic.
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          2  Because I have several drivers whose livelihood is

          3  at risk, and if they cannot get insured because they

          4  cannot afford to purchase a new car again, because

          5  not too far, not too long ago, they were required to

          6  do that as well, we're going to hit rock bottom in

          7  the industry.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I will give you a

          9  call and we'll chat about that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'd like to learn

         12  more about it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Thank

         14  you Council Member Reyna.  Questions from Council

         15  Member Addabbo and then Martinez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you Mr.

         17  Chair.  And Commissioner Daus.  And Mr. Salkin.  I

         18  really appreciate your time and testimony today in

         19  dealing with this issue.

         20                 My question is more in the lines of

         21  what I possibly think is the high cost in the

         22  application process.  And just looking at the

         23  application, here there's a $5,000 bond, a $1,000

         24  licensing fee, a fingerprinting fee of $75 per

         25  employee.  And then for some, the environmental
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          2  assessment statement, which, I can only figure out

          3  how much that is.  Are these costs and these fees,

          4  which could possibly be on the high end, are these

          5  costs, these fees, the same as they were in the

          6  past?  Or are any of these fees or costs new?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, they're all

          8  set forth in the Administrative Code.  They are the

          9  same.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay, so

         11  there's no change in these costs or fees.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Unless, I mean, it

         13  is possible that the Department of Criminal Justice

         14  Services sets their own fees for criminal record

         15  checks.  That may have gone up, I think, after 9-

         16  11.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: There are

         18  other fees, obviously, I didn't mention.  --

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's all set forth

         20  in the law that the Council  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Then none of

         22  the fees have changed.  They haven't increased or

         23  anything like that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: If an
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          2  application is rejected, what amount of these fees

          3  or costs are refunded?  Or possibly, are they lost?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They are not

          5  refunded.  They're lost.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: They're not

          7  refunded.  So basically, they're lost.

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay.  And

         10  are these costs or fees different, obviously, for

         11  renewal as opposed to new applicants?

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I think there are

         13  less costs for renewals.  I just don't know --

         14  they're the same.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So a person

         16  who is looking to start up a business, obviously,

         17  and to through the application process, can be

         18  expected to get ready, a large up- front costs as

         19  far as this application process is concerned, and

         20  possibly not get any money back.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay.  Thank

         23  you Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         25  Member Addabbo. Council Member Martinez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

          3  Mr. Chair.  Thank you Commissioner, both for being

          4  here and --  you know, this is really an important

          5  issue for our communities.  And I think that the

          6  more I hear testimony from the Commissioner, the

          7  more intriguing it is to continue to question this

          8  process.

          9                 I had an experience with TLC and an

         10  approval of a license, an new license in my

         11  district.  And you know, interesting enough, when we

         12  talk about the process, you know, the process was

         13  followed.  You had Community Board input.  You had

         14  Council Member input against the base because of

         15  environmental issues in the district.  However, all

         16  of that was ignored.  And the same is true that it

         17  is extremely important, while I hear the

         18  Commissioner saying that TLC doesn't know if it

         19  legally could require an agency or consultant or

         20  recommend to conduct an environmental study. Because

         21  we speak about environmental studies as Council

         22  Member Sears mentioned, it's highly technical and

         23  complicated.  There are issues of asthma.  There are

         24  issues of traffic congestion.  There are hundreds

         25  and hundreds of issue.  And then for TLC to say that
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          2  bases could self certify themself, by saying, we

          3  don't have an environmental impact or problem, that

          4  is unacceptable.

          5                 The same is true that we definitely

          6  need to take a look at this law, Mr. Chair, because

          7  how is it that this body has the responsibility at

          8  the end of this process, as a body?  And we see this

          9  on a monthly basis, where we meet in this room to

         10  approve all the renewal of bases, because

         11  legislatively, we need to approve them.  However, we

         12  don't get information.  We don't get the study that

         13  they're supposed to produce to TLC prior to the

         14  Commission approving this.  We should have the

         15  information that tells us, as a body, there are

         16  either environmental issues, who conducted the

         17  environmental study?  And we should have the

         18  information, also, as Council Member Reyna

         19  mentioned, it looks to me, from this application,

         20  that every single shareholder of a base is required

         21  to list his or herself for the background

         22  information.  It says "stockholders".  It doesn't

         23  say the amount of board member or executive board.

         24  It says, "partners and stockholders".  So if there

         25  are 20 stockholders, if there are 40, 50, 100
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          2  partners, every partner needs to be listed.

          3                 So we need to have clear information

          4  from TLC, because it's totally unacceptable, for

          5  example, that I invested many hours in my office,

          6  and time, to inform the TLC, working directly with

          7  the Commissioner's office, on this issue of this

          8  base coming to my district.  And at the end of the

          9  day, when I call the Commissioners at TLC, they did

         10  not have the information.  That is outrageous.

         11                 I called Commissioners at TLC to let

         12  them know that my Community Board, following these

         13  rules, was against a base coming to my district,

         14  because an environmental issue.  Community against

         15  it, and they Commissioners didn't have that

         16  information. And Commissioners didn't have my letter

         17  changing my support because of the environmental

         18  issues.

         19                 So there's definitely something wrong

         20  with this process.  When this body is left out of

         21  the process, and they just look at us and say, well,

         22  by the way, by the way Council Member, there's a

         23  base coming for your district.  Or there's a base

         24  that needs to renewal.  Can you just sign this

         25  letter?  And if you don't sign, it's going to happen
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          2  anyway.

          3                 That is totally unacceptable.  And

          4  that's the process.  That is the process right now.

          5                 So when we speak of the 247 bases in

          6  2004 that paid for renewal, and the 220 in 2005 that

          7  paid for renewal  --  in 2004, 130 approved.  And

          8  179 in 2005 approved.  Can they tell us now, how

          9  many of these bases have issues with a Council

         10  Member and were still approved?  I would say, the

         11  number would be high.  Or many Council Members may

         12  be not even responded to that notice. Because we

         13  weren't well informed about this process.  All we

         14  know is, that on a monthly basis, we sit here, we

         15  get a list of bases that are renewal or new bases in

         16  our district, and we're expected to vote on it.  And

         17  yet we don't get the information.

         18                 And yet, I still question the

         19  information that the Commissioners get themselves.

         20  Based on my experience.  And this is a call that I'm

         21  making to every delegation to this Council, that we

         22  must call our Commissioners, that sit on that Board,

         23  and let them know that there are Council approval,

         24  and that they represent us there.  And that the

         25  information that they get from the Commissioners
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          2  office is not necessarily the information that we're

          3  providing them.  And that is clear and transparent

          4  from this process.  It is totally outrageous what's

          5  happening.

          6                 And you know, I want to go back to

          7  the law.  So you say that there are laws and rules

          8  that guide the approval of a license.  So if you're

          9  telling me that you need an environmental impact,

         10  which is self certifying, if you're telling me that

         11  you need an approval from the Community Board, and

         12  if you're telling me that you need a letter from the

         13  precinct.  If you get a negative response from these

         14  bodies, what, in the rule tells TLC that they must

         15  go forward and approve the license?  In the law.

         16  And your rules?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Okay.  I'll try to

         18  answer your questions one by one.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I just had

         20  one question.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Oh, okay.  In

         22  Section 19- 511, D3, it reads, "in its review of an

         23  application for a license to operate a new base

         24  station, and in its review of an application to

         25  renew a base station license, the Commission shall
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          2  also consider the possible adverse affect of such

          3  base station on the quality of life in the vicinity

          4  of the base station, including, but not limited to,

          5  traffic congestion, sidewalk congestion, and noise.

          6  In its review of an application to renew a base

          7  station license, the Commission shall also consider

          8  whether a determination has been made, after an

          9  administrative proceeding, that the operator has

         10  violated any applicable rule of the Commission".

         11                 With all due respect, Council Member,

         12  that is the provision that we relied on, and I know

         13  the base that you're talking about, and I understand

         14  that it may be frustrating to you to have to put in

         15  so much time to say this is something I don't want

         16  in my community --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Because

         18  you're violating that rule.  You are violating that

         19  rule.  Right now, you finished saying that if an

         20  application comes in proves that it has

         21  environmental, a negative environmental impact in

         22  the immediate community, in the surrounding

         23  community, and there's community opposition, that is

         24  a subject for disapproval.  Is that what you read?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Well, can

          3  you read it again, then?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Could I just

          5  respond?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No.  I need

          7  you to read that part, where you say that what is it

          8  that you consider on the environmental  --

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The Commission

         10  shall also consider, consider, the possible,

         11  possible adverse affect of such a base station on

         12  the quality of life in the vicinity of the base

         13  station, including, but not limited to, traffic

         14  congestion, sidewalk congestion, and noise".  Which,

         15  on the base you're talking about, six of the

         16  Commissioners listened to your comments, and

         17  respectfully disagreed with you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No.  I'm not

         19  concerned about that base.  I'm concerned about the

         20  process.  Forget about that base.  Forget about

         21  individualizing that base.  I'm concerned about the

         22  process.

         23                 So can you tell me, can you tell me

         24  what's the other consideration?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We look at the
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          2  environmental assessment.  We look at --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You just

          4  finished saying, "consider".  I want you to tell me,

          5  in the law, in the law  --  you just finished saying

          6  that this is part of what you look at for approval.

          7  I want to know, in the law, what is required for an

          8  approval of a base.  If I tell you, as a Council

          9  Member that has to vote for a base, if I tell you

         10  that I have a problem, there environmental  -- I

         11  know my community.  If I tell you there's a problem,

         12  there are environmental issues, there's traffic

         13  congestion, and the community doesn't want it, and I

         14  come with a Community Board letter, saying we don't

         15  want it, and then the Commission still goes ahead

         16  and approves a base, what is the guidance for the

         17  Commission to approve it?  Having that already a

         18  done deal.  Community Board says no.  I say no.

         19  Precincts say no. And example.  Everybody says no.

         20  Yet, the Commission approves it. What guidance does

         21  the Commission  --  what under the rules allows the

         22  Commission to move forward?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The Commission is

         24  required, under the rules and the law to get

         25  information, whether it's information they rely on,
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          2  or disagree with, from the Community Boards and the

          3  Council Members.  We also reach out to the Police

          4  Precincts, and use the environmental assessment to

          5  get information.

          6                 Once the Commission has all that

          7  information, it applies the standard that I read.

          8  And in the particular case that we're talking about,

          9  there was conflicting information.  So, just because

         10  a Community Board says, no, I don't want it, doesn't

         11  mean that this standard has been met.  I mean, there

         12  could be someone on the Community Board who is just

         13  making something up.  It's possible.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:

         15  Commissioner.  Let's be respectful.  The Community

         16  Board goes through a process of hearing and a

         17  process of approving an application.  There's no

         18  misinformation there.  You, however, have not

         19  answered my question.

         20                 So you're saying that there's a

         21  guidance that you use in terms of collecting

         22  information.  You've collected the information,

         23  right?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You've
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          2  collected the information, the community is telling

          3  you no.  Forget about a particular taxi base.  I'm

          4  talking about the process.  Let's say there's a taxi

          5  base in Council Member Liu's district, and Council

          6  Member Reyna's district.  Forget about my district.

          7  I know exactly what happened in my district.  But in

          8  Council Member Reyna's district, there's a base, and

          9  her Community Board says no.  And she, as a

         10  Councilwoman, who has to approve this legislatively

         11  here, which, Mr. Chair, we definitely need to take a

         12  look at this law, and yet, you have the information

         13  you wanted to collect.  You have the information.

         14  Community says no.  Tell me, what it is, on the law,

         15  don't read that again, because I'm giving you that

         16  information.  You have information.  Precinct says

         17  no.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: She says no.

         20    Everybody says no in the community.  Yet, the

         21  Commission, guided by the Commissioner, goes ahead,

         22  and approves a base.  How did that happen?  What

         23  under the law tells you that you must approve the

         24  base, even if you have community opposition?

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: There's no
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          2  provision in the law giving an individual Council

          3  Member, or an individual Community Board a veto

          4  power over the discretion that has been given to the

          5  Commission.  That's my answer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

          7  That's what I wanted to hear.  That's the portion,

          8  Mr. Chair, that's the portion that we have to take a

          9  look at.  Because if we have the power, as

         10  legislators, to put this law together, and to

         11  oversee this agency, and then for this agency to

         12  come to us and tell us, we need you to approve these

         13  bases, and we're not getting information, that's

         14  definitely a process that is not transparent.

         15  Absolutely not transparent.

         16                 On one hand, you're saying you want

         17  information from Community Board, --  and can you

         18   --  I don't know if you have this information also

         19   -- how many cases do you have, and I don't expect

         20  you to have this now, because if it took you a while

         21  to tell us how many bases were approved, when a part

         22  of an oversight hearing has to do with this

         23  particular issue, you don't have that information at

         24  hand, I don't expect you to have this one either.

         25  If you could get this information to me, how many
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          2  bases were disapproved based on the Council Member's

          3  concern and Community Board concern.  Out of the

          4  ones that you approved in 2004, and 2005.  That's

          5  information that is extremely important.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: There was one last

          7  year that involved Council Member Fidler.  And it

          8  was a renewal, not a new base.  And ultimately, what

          9  happened was there was an acceptable solution worked

         10  out between the Council Member and the base.  They

         11  had some issues with one another.  After we took

         12  action, they sat down and they worked out a new

         13  location for the base to go.

         14                 So it's very rare, Council Member

         15  that these issues happen.  It's not often that  --

         16  usually what you do get is an approval and everybody

         17  saying it's okay.  It's the rare situation that

         18  causes tempers to flare and issues to be presented.

         19                 You know, Council Member, you made a

         20  case for changing the law.  I mean, we're just

         21  trying to do the best we can with this law to apply

         22  it.  While we may disagree on certain applications

         23  of it, I mean, I just want you to understand that

         24  it's based upon our objective review of what we

         25  believe the law, the standards set forth in the law.
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          2    Even if we do disagree on them.

          3                 But if you're looking to have veto

          4  power for a particular Council Member or Community

          5  Board, or Police Precinct, with all due respect, Mr.

          6  Chairman, that's something that we can't do, unless

          7  you change the law.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I'm not

          9  asking that.  What I'm saying is, that if this body

         10  is expected to vote on a vote on an item approved by

         11  the Commission, this body needs to be well informed.

         12    And right now, we're not well informed.  All we

         13  get is a notice,  by the way, Council Member,

         14  there's a base coming up for renewal.  Do you

         15  approve or disapprove?  If you don't respond, we're

         16  still going to approve it.  That's what we get from

         17  you.  And the same is true that we do not get this

         18  information in terms of telling us, as a body, you

         19  have this base, and environmental study of community

         20  impact have been done.  We don't get that

         21  information. We don't know what we're voting on.  We

         22  don't know what we're approving.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You're talking

         24  about after the end of the process, after we approve

         25  it and it comes before you as a Committee?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No.  When it

          3  comes to us as a body. Yes.  As a Committee.  We

          4  don't get none of that information.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I'd be happy to

          6  give you whatever you want.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAUS: No, I don't want

          8  you to be happy.  I want to require you to give me

          9  that.  That's what I want. And the same is true, the

         10  same is true that you know, when you ask of the

         11  issue of parking, --

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We do send

         13  information to the Speaker's Office.  We'll double

         14  check exactly what it is.  If you want more

         15  information, we'll be happy to give it to you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: The issue of

         17  parking.  When you say that you  -- how do you

         18  confirm the arrangement of alternate parking?  Off

         19  street parking?  In a garage.  How do you verify

         20  that?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: According to the

         22  law, it has to be within one point five miles, I

         23  believe of the base, if I'm not mistaken.  And it's

         24  for every car, every two cars you have affiliated

         25  with your base, you need one parking spot.  We take
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          2  a look at financial arrangements and lease- hold

          3  agreements, or other evidence of ownership of

          4  property to house these cars.  And we also do field

          5  inspections before it gets to the Commission, where

          6  we double check to make sure it's there.  And that's

          7  all in the Administrative Code.  It's a law that was

          8  passed about ten years ago.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And what

         10  happens if the base station  --  so this is when the

         11  individual bases are going for renewal or a new

         12  base?  Do you check both?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's a

         14  requirement for both.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Do you check

         16  that?  Let's say, six months after you approve?  To

         17  see if they're complying with this?

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Do we do an actual

         19  inspection just for that purpose on a regular basis,

         20  I don't believe that we do.  However, we do respond

         21  to complaints that we get, and if enforcement leads

         22  down that road to check that out, then they would do

         23  that.

         24                 In particular, there have been

         25  situations where we receive letters from Council
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          2  Members, Community Boards, complaining about

          3  congestion in the areas of bases.  When we start

          4  getting those complaints, in addition to checking

          5  out the area, enforcement is also authorized to go

          6  and reverify their off- street parking. But right

          7  now, the way it is in terms of a standing periodic

          8  inspection, it's every two years when they come up

          9  for renewal.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Mr. Chair,

         11  you know, I respectfully am going to ask you and

         12  Council that as part of our agenda for 2006, it

         13  should take a look at this law.  Because we have an

         14  agency that based on law that we have, is putting

         15  out requirements for renewal of license, requirement

         16  that, first of all, are self certifying, when we

         17  talk about environmental impact, requirements of

         18  background of partners or stockholders, or

         19  shareholders, requirements that are about, listing

         20  here about 15 or 20 with fees, and even holding some

         21  of the bases responsible with their independent

         22  drivers, of whether or not the individual has a

         23  valid driver's license.

         24                 I think that there should be no

         25  driver out there with a suspended driver's license.
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          2  But however, bases are not law enforcers.  And bases

          3  do not have, on a daily basis, I believe, the

          4  ability, when you have two or three hundred cars, to

          5  check the driver's license on a daily basis.  I

          6  think that's the responsibility of TLC.  Because

          7  when TLC is out there enforcing, they enforce

          8  aggressively.  So to enforce selectively, is

          9  something that we have to take a look at.

         10                 And the same is true that based on

         11  this law that we have to change, we as a body, need

         12  to be fully informed before TLC sends us a list of

         13  bases that are up for renewal or new bases that are

         14  looking for a new license.  And unfortunately, we

         15  need to have dialogue with the Commission.  We need

         16  to make sure that the Commission and then this body

         17  comes to an agreement in terms of what best works

         18  for this body to be informed.  And for the

         19  Commission to make an informed decision before they

         20  approve a new base in any community.

         21                 And I want to set this for the

         22  record, this is not about a base opening up in my

         23  district.  This is about the process. And

         24  unfortunately, the process is not a transparent

         25  process.  And I'll leave it as that.  It's not
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          2  transparent, and it's not following the guides here.

          3    It is mostly because the Council is kept

          4  uniformed, and is expected to approve renewals or

          5  new licenses in our district.

          6                 So, Mr. Chair, again, I will be

          7  working with the Council, your office, to take a

          8  look at this law, making some amendment to ensure

          9  that we're better informed and that the process is

         10  transparent in approving and not approving bases in

         11  our district.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you Council

         13  Member Martinez. And I think the points are well

         14  taken.  There does need to be an examination of the

         15  base station licensing process.  The letter that we

         16  have a copy of addressed to our Speaker, and I

         17  believe, many of us received a similar kind of

         18  letter, informing us of how the TLC is looking to

         19  ensure the best in quality, availability and

         20  efficiency, I mean, that sounds great.  But

         21  nonetheless, these were unilateral changes made by

         22  the Taxi and Limousine Commission, and on the

         23  surface, does seem like it sounds good.  It sounds

         24  great.

         25                 But generally speaking, changes that
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          2  sound good and are good, and are great, are changes

          3  that there's a dialogue about first, and there's no

          4  reason why we wouldn't have agreed to these changes

          5  up front, before the announcement of these changes,

          6  and being informed of these changes.

          7                 The lag, or the amount of time by

          8  which base stations are allowed to continue to

          9  operate, even if they have not fulfilled the

         10  requirements for having their license renewed, is

         11  disturbing.  And it leads to a situation where not

         12  only is the spirit of the law not being complied

         13  with, but it sets us all up for a situation where

         14  there could be selective enforcement.  That's

         15  something that we don't want to have.

         16                 And finally, the muddying of the

         17  concept of the Taxi and Limousine Commission, the

         18  Commission itself, versus the staff of the

         19  Commission, that I think, is most disturbing of all.

         20    With all due respect, Chairman Daus.  I think this

         21  is something that we must be very clear on in the

         22  future.  Staff is not empowered by anybody to make

         23  decisions.  Certainly not with respect to approving

         24  applications for licenses for base stations, whether

         25  they be new or renewals.  So by not taking any
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          2  action, the Commission is actually implicitly

          3  approving the work of the staff.

          4                 We do not recognize here in this

          5  Council, the work of the staff.  We recognize the

          6  decisions of the Commission.  And when we get

          7  informed by the TLC that the TLC has approved the

          8  following applications, we expect that to be a

          9  decision made by the Commission.  Not by staff

         10  members.

         11                 So I'm happy to see that you've at

         12  least made that change in 2005.  It begs the

         13  question of what happened in 2004 and previous

         14  years.  At least certainly during the time that this

         15  Committee has been working, since 2002.  What about

         16  all those applications?  Were they simply approved

         17  by staff?  Or were they actually approved by

         18  Commission?  We would argue that obviously, based on

         19  the communications sent to us, they were approved by

         20  Commission, because there's no other reason for us

         21  to doubt that the Commission approved it.

         22                 You say that we actually, in the

         23  Council, appoint several of the members of the

         24  Commission.  And yet, there was, up until this year,

         25  an unclear concept about who was a Commission and
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          2  who is on staff.  So that's also a breakdown in the

          3  process by which the stations are being licensed.

          4  And I think, a departure from if not the letter, at

          5  least the spirit of the law.

          6                 So this is, I think, the opening

          7  hearing into this process by which stations are

          8  licensed in this City.  And in the next few months,

          9  we're not trying to be presumptuous, if we are not

         10  on this Committee next month, then we would

         11  certainly advocate that the then members of the

         12  Transportation Committee continue to look at this

         13  issue.

         14                 But this issue has somewhat

         15  unexpectedly boiled up into a concern that needs to

         16  be addressed at our Committee level. And it's

         17  unexpected mainly because we didn't know about the

         18  changes that the TLC was going to make, and we were

         19  certainly informed. And so, if we are on the

         20  Committee, and if not, then our successors on the

         21  Committee will work with you and your staff to make

         22  sure that the station application process and

         23  licensing process works for all of the people of New

         24  York City.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, we
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          2  appreciate that, Mr. Chairman.  And I couldn't agree

          3  with you more about some of those changes.  I think

          4  that's why we changed it when it was something that

          5  I started looking at.  It's been going on that way

          6  for ten years, and we should never go back to that,

          7  because this is important.

          8                 I'd be happy to meet with Council

          9  Member Martinez and get his ideas.  He has a lot of

         10  bases in his district.  And I'm happy that the

         11  Committee is taking an interest in this important

         12  issue.

         13                 Of coursed, whenever you try anything

         14  new, you're going to get people that complain, or

         15  don't understand things.  But then again, where

         16  would we be if we didn't try anything new?  I do

         17  believe, and I offer my apology again, that your

         18  Committee was not as informed as it could have been

         19  about what we were doing.  So, we'd like to fix

         20  that.  Change that.  And if any of your members,

         21  including yourself want to sit down with us

         22  individually, collectively, to discuss what things

         23  in the law you don't like, maybe we can look at that

         24  and agree with you, or talk about it. And if you

         25  like the law the way it is, if you'd like to see
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          2  some of the requirements be done a little bit

          3  differently, I think we're open to exploring how it

          4  can be done more efficiently.

          5                 I think that this was all done with

          6  the best of intentions.  There's no question about

          7  it.  Staff spent a lot of work, working hard on

          8  this.  And I would like to see this dialogue

          9  continue.  And I welcome the oversight on this

         10  issue.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Terrific.  Thank you

         12  very much.               Just as an aside, is it

         13  part of the new process, or has it always been the

         14  case that the Department of Transportation weighs in

         15  on these application processes?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.  Other than

         17  the fact that the Commissioner of the DOT sits on

         18  our Board and votes, other than that, no.  However,

         19  with  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No what?  That it's

         21  not a change, or that they don't have a --

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They don't have an

         23  official role under the law in the process.  But

         24  they do, for instance, in commuter vans.  If you

         25  look at the Administrative Code, there's a similar
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          2  type of process, but there is a specific role for

          3  the DOT in there.  But not in this one.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Great.  Thank

          5  you very much for spending all this time.  And hope

          6  for the best.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We look forward to

          8  working with you on this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In the coming months

         10  and also for the rest of today.  Thank you.  Happy

         11  holidays.

         12                 Next, we'll hear from some

         13  representatives of the industry.  Why don't I just

         14  call  --  should I call all of you up at the same

         15  time?  Any issues that we have to  --

         16                 We have Eugene Pero and Art Grover;

         17  Jose Viloria; and Lloyd Tayler; and Peter Mazer.

         18                 MR. PERO: Good morning Chairman Liu

         19  and Members of the City Council.  I'd like to

         20  clarify a couple of issues.  One in reference to the

         21  renewals.  Prior to this new system, new application

         22  that the TLC introduced.  Not new, it's been there

         23  all the while, but it was handled in a different

         24  manner.

         25                 My base license was always a year
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          2  overdue prior to this new application.  To this

          3  reprocessed application.  As far as Councilman

          4  Reyna's question about new vehicles that are being

          5  required, that's due to the insurance companies,

          6  insurance company. We only have one insurance

          7  company that insures us at the present time.  That's

          8  American Transit.  Basically, they are requiring '97

          9  and above.  Next year, it will be '98 and above.

         10  It's not the TLC's requirement.

         11                 I'd also like to say that on that

         12  same topic of insurance, we're having a major

         13  problem in the City since we have an oversight

         14  committee, with livery plates coming into the City.

         15  Instead of T and C licensed vehicles.  It's all over

         16  the five boroughs.  People are getting insured in

         17  Nassau, Suffolk, Westchester, Upstate New York,

         18  coming into our City with lower insurance limits.

         19  Instead of having the $100,000/$300,000 to $200,000

         20  personal injury protection that we have to maintain

         21  with the TLC, they're coming in possibly with

         22  $25,000, $50,000 and $50,000.  Or possibly they're

         23  coming in with $100,000/$300,000 bodily injury, but

         24  they cannot get the personal injury protection.    So

         25  , where they're concerned about public safety, in
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          2  this instance, there's no public safety.  I mean, we

          3  have bases all around us, whether it's Staten

          4  Island, or Brooklyn, that are operating with livery

          5  plates blatantly.

          6                 What else?  Councilman Addabbo.  You

          7  presented a question basically, we have new bases

          8  and renewals.  And transfers of base stations.  If

          9  you're a new base, you're required to have the EIS

         10  done on that base.  If it's a transfer, you need the

         11  environmental impact study done also.  A transfer.

         12  That means if you go from one block to five blocks

         13  in the same neighborhood, you're going to have to

         14  get the EIS study.  It doesn't pertain to renewals

         15  if you're in the same original location.

         16                 Now, the livery owners, the position

         17  of the Livery Owners Coalition is that the new

         18  procedure that the TLC brought in, should only apply

         19  to new bases.  It shouldn't apply to existing bases.

         20    Existing bases, they're in the same location for

         21  five, ten, fifteen, twenty, thirty years.  Have

         22  serviced their communities. They have no problem

         23  with the Community Boards.  They have no problem

         24  with the PD.  They have no problem with their City

         25  Councilman in that district.  If they did, they
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          2  would either send a letter, or would get in contact

          3  with the TLC, and do some type of investigation onto

          4  what the problem is within that car service.

          5                 The Comprehensive Operating Plan

          6  that's required. It's going into our personal

          7  business.  They're requesting spreadsheets, what a

          8  driver earns.  I mean, personally, I think it's none

          9  of their business.  I think it's an invasion of our

         10  privacy.  I mean, especially like I said before.  If

         11  it's a new base, you have to give an operating plan,

         12  a Comprehensive Operating Plan.  And they should.

         13  As far as the environmental impact study, well,

         14  that's required by law, so that has to be done that

         15  way. Probably a City legislation, a State

         16  legislation.

         17                 You have to forgive me, because I

         18  wasn't really prepared to be here today.  And I

         19  didn't really draft anything. But I do have a lot of

         20  concerns here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, but we just, I

         22  mean, it will be helpful for us if you all just

         23  talked about what's good and what's bad about the

         24  process, and how the change affected you.  And Mr.

         25  Pero, you've been very clear that you would prefer
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          2  not to have -- you would have preferred that the

          3  Taxi and Limousine Commission not have changed the

          4  licensing requirements.

          5                 MR. PERO: Well, I mean, they were

          6  there before, except like Chairman Daus has

          7  mentioned.  They would handle everything.  The only

          8  thing that we would do was send in our $1,000 for

          9  the two- year renewal, wait a year for our license

         10  to be approved, for whatever reason, and then we

         11  would go on with our own business.  Now what has

         12  happened, I mean, we have to get, whether it's a

         13  secretary or a special person just to handle all of

         14  these papers for criminal investigations, giving

         15  zoning --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So it's a lot more

         17  paperwork.  I want to hear from some of your

         18  colleagues, but let me ask you, Mr. Pero, during

         19  that year in which  -- you paid your $1,000 for a

         20  two year renewal, but you basically had to wait a

         21  year before the application was actually approved.

         22                 MR. PERO: Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The application for

         24  the renewal was actually approved.  During that year

         25  lag, was there any risk to your operations?  Was
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          2  there any kind of uncertainty?  Did it make you feel

          3  uneasy?  Or was it just no big deal?

          4                 MR. PERO: No. No.  There were certain

          5  times, like when the insurance companies required a

          6  copy of our base license. That was a primary issue.

          7  You know, we would have last year's base license.

          8  And they we would be concerned about what happened

          9  with this year's base license?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But did they go

         11  ahead and issue the insurance policy anyway?  Or

         12  were there some serious flags raised?

         13                 MR. PERO: Well, I mean, you know, I

         14  mean, it was a problem.  I mean, how was it

         15  resolved?  We showed them a check that we sent to

         16  the TLC, or a money order that we sent to the TLC to

         17  cover the licensing fee.  Little did they know, we

         18  don't get it back whether we're denied or not, but

         19  that's besides the point.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So the insurance

         21  companies didn't necessarily know that the

         22  application for the license had not actually been

         23  approved yet.  They just had proof that you paid

         24  your application fee.

         25                 MR. PERO: Correct.  And just to go on
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          2  further with this, my license  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Would the fact that

          4  the insurance -- would that have affected the

          5  insurance coverage if it had become known that the

          6  license was not yet in affect, or not formerly

          7  renewed.

          8                 MR. PERO: Okay.  Now that's a

          9  perfectly good question.  I mean, we're dealing with

         10  one company, American Transit.  Edgar Gideon, Jr.  I

         11  mean, he could do anything he wants to do.  It's an

         12  independent insurance company.  There's no

         13  shareholders.  He can make any decision he wants.

         14  If he makes a decision and say, well, you don't have

         15  workers' compensation, you do not have a legitimate

         16  base license at the present time, and I am not going

         17  to give you insurance.  Yes, that could possibly

         18  happen. He's done it before.  In other instances, or

         19  other criteria that he had wanted that we couldn't

         20  fulfill.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So then do you think

         22  a base station would simply close down, or would

         23  they have operated without the proper insurance?

         24                 MR. PERO: Well, no. What we would do

         25  on a stance, we'd go to Nassau, Suffolk County,
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          2  Westchester, obtain livery plates and I would still

          3  operate.  Illegally.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Well, I

          5  do  --  I sincerely thank you for your

          6  forthrightness.  I know you're an expert in this

          7  issue, as being head of the Livery Owner's

          8  Coalition, you represent many livery for- hire

          9  vehicle services.

         10  And that's certainly is a huge problem, at least in

         11  this Committee's opinion, that the TLC certainly did

         12  not bother to bring up when we asked them repeatedly

         13  about the issue.  We didn't know exactly what

         14  question to ask them, but certainly that issue,

         15  being as serious as we think it is, should have been

         16  brought up by the Taxi and Limousine Commission.

         17                 MR. PERO: Correct.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         19                 MR. GROVER: Councilman Liu, one

         20  thing, well, a few things I'd like to bring up.

         21  Number one  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.  Could you

         23  please identify yourself for the record?

         24                 MR. GROVER: My name is Art Grover.

         25  I'm Vice President of the Staten Island Livery
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          2  Association.  I'm also on the Board of the Livery

          3  Owners' Coalition.  I'm also a member of the TLC

          4  Advisory, Livery Advisory Board.

          5                 The problem with this Board is things

          6  are brought to us, and not said how does this affect

          7  the industry?  What do we have to do that it would

          8  be good for the industry, and for the City of New

          9  York.  This is given to us, and said, this is what

         10  we're doing.  Bingo.  And a lot of these things that

         11  are brought in have hurt us tremendously.  One of

         12  them being the increasing of the limits from the 50

         13  and 100 to 103, 100, which made the American Transit

         14  the one and only.

         15                 How has it affected us?  There is a

         16  company in Staten Island that was told, unless you

         17  put on brand new cars, I am not renewing your

         18  insurance.  Which made this man go out and borrow

         19  $350,000 to stay in business.  Personally, I told

         20  him, he's nuts. I would have put the key in the door

         21  and said good-bye.  Because at this point right now,

         22  the money that's earned in this industry, is so

         23  minute, it's crazy to be in business.  If I wasn't

         24  in business for 25 years, I would have closed my

         25  doors.  I can't do it.  This is my blood.  This is
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          2  my life.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Grover.  You're

          4  referring to the insurance requirements.  And the

          5  actions of the insurance company, not necessarily

          6  the Taxi and Limousine Commission.

          7                 MR. GROVER: Now, let's go one step

          8  further.  There was a meeting at the Commission,

          9  where the State Department of Insurance came up and

         10  said, it is not necessary to have these limits.  The

         11  President of American Transit came up and said, it

         12  is not necessary for these limits.  What do you have

         13  to show that this is detrimental to the industry,

         14  and it's not hurting the riding public to have the

         15  limits, or even if you went a little higher than the

         16  limits that were there, prior to them raising it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. I guess we can

         18  explore the insurance question, probably in a

         19  separate venue, because that's somewhat tangential

         20  to the topic that we're trying to address today.

         21  We're simply looking at the TLC licensing, base

         22  station licensing process.  We understand, and

         23  Council Members Reyna and Martinez and I, and other

         24  members of this Committee are fully aware of the

         25  question of whether the insurance limits need to be
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          2   --  the insurance requirements need to be as high

          3  as they currently are.

          4                 MR. GROVER: One thing  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: But there's no clear

          6  answer to that.

          7                 MR. GROVER: I recall when there were

          8  700 bases. There are now 500 some odd bases.  What

          9  happened to all the other bases?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, has there been

         11  a decrease or an increase in the number of For- Hire

         12  vehicles?

         13                 MR. GROVER: Well, as far as I'm

         14  concerned, I had 23 cars on at one time, I now have

         15  16.  And I know many of us have decreased our fleets

         16  drastically.  The answer has to be there somewhere.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Okay, great.

         18  Well, thank you very much for your testimony.  Mr.

         19  Viloria.

         20                 MR. VILORIA: Good morning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please state your

         22  name for the record.

         23                 MR. VILORIA: My name is Jose Viloria.

         24    I am representing the Federation of Taxi Drivers

         25  of New York.
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          2                 My concern is about the new

          3  regulation TLC  -- I want to say, excuse me about my

          4  language.  I have a barrier, a language bud.  I'm

          5  going to try to speak slowly.

          6                 Okay.  We support the new regulation

          7  of Taxi and Limousine Commission.  Why we support

          8  it?  For many years, Taxi and Limousine Commission

          9  require from the City Council Members, from the

         10  Community Boards, and from the Police Department.

         11  But right now, like the Federation of Taxi Drivers,

         12  we complain about the bases.  We complain about many

         13  bases.  Some bases respect the law. But some bases,

         14  they don't care.  They have many drivers who

         15  license, many drivers with records.  They don't care

         16  about the drivers if they have the power to see how

         17  the license for this driver is, they don't care.

         18  They send it.  No matter if this driver have

         19  regulation.  So I think this is a job between Taxi

         20  and Limousine Commission and the bases.  So if the

         21  City Council Member Martinez, want a safety, safety

         22  community, he can't be against the new regulations.

         23  Because for years, the Federation asked to the

         24  bases, take care more to your drivers.  Make sure

         25  before TLC or the Police Department stop that car,
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          2  and give a summons to the drivers.

          3                 The bases supposed to be call the

          4  driver and say, listen you have regulation in your

          5  license, please don't drive that car.  But your car

          6  have a regulation.  Please don't drive that car. But

          7  the bases never do it.  And those are the things, I

          8  feel, like a panic, what the Councilman Martinez

          9  doing right now?  I think the Taxi and Limousine

         10  Commission have the right to make more strong to the

         11  bases.

         12                 Believe me.  Taxi and Limousine

         13  Commission make a million dollars in drivers every

         14  year.  Why?  Because they capture the driver with

         15  the wrong license.  The wrong evidence.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Viloria, you --

         17  why don't you clarify for us.  Your organization

         18  represents the drivers, as opposed to the base

         19  stations.  So you represent the individual drivers.

         20                 MR. VILORIA: We represent individual

         21  drivers.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The taxi drivers.

         23                 MR. VILORIA: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you're actually

         25   --  you're saying that you want the City to make
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          2  sure that the base station is ensuring that the

          3  drivers are properly licensed, without records?

          4                 MR. VILORIA: Yes, sir.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You actually want

          6  the base stations to come down harder on the

          7  drivers?

          8                 MR. VILORIA: Well, let me tell you.

          9  We don't want the bases doing wrong thing, something

         10  illegal to the driver.  But if it is allowed, you

         11  have a TLC license.  If it is allowed, you have it

         12  insured.  The bases are supposed to make sure that

         13  driver, and that car have an insurance or have a

         14  license.  I think so.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So you're

         16  supportive of the new TLC regulations.

         17                 MR. VILORIA: Yes.  Under the

         18  Community Board and the City Council Member doing

         19  the job.  If the City Council Member checks on the

         20  base, don't send a  --  let me tell you about my

         21  board.  My district board, like Miguel Martinez.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: This hearing is not

         23  about anyone's district, or any particular station.

         24  We should just talk about the TLC rules in general.

         25                 MR. VILORIA: I apologize.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If you want to use

          3  how the changes affected a particular application,

          4  by all means, go ahead.  But the issues are not

          5  about any particular application.

          6                 MR. VILORIA: I'm sorry.  I apologize

          7  about that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It's okay.

          9                 MR. VILORIA: But let me tell you, I

         10  used to be a taxi driver.  And I feel mad, to

         11  sometimes, with the regulation we have it, I, like a

         12  driver, I don't know when I don't have insurance.

         13  But the base is supposed to know.  They have the

         14  computers right there.  If they have to buy some

         15  information to motivate the department, to know they

         16  have to do.  They have to work with the Commission.

         17  Because in the regulation of the Commission of Taxi

         18  and Limousine, say the base is responsible for the

         19  drivers.  But many bases don't do that.  And that's

         20  worry to me, because now if I driving a taxi, I feel

         21  with panic, because every minute, Taxi and Limousine

         22  Commission has stopped me.  Or the Police Department

         23  is stopped my car, because they want to make sure my

         24  car have insurance.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So Mr. Viloria, it

                                                            137

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  seems like you're saying that your organization is

          3  upset that your members are getting tickets by

          4  Police Officers and by TLC inspectors.

          5                 MR. VILORIA: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that you would

          7  prefer that the base station not even allow your

          8  member to go out in the first place.

          9                 MR. VILORIA: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So that they would

         11  not be able to go out and earn money, and therefore,

         12  they would not get tickets.

         13                 MR. VILORIA: Not really.  That

         14  information is in the system.  It's any car that

         15  don't have insurance, or any driver don't have a

         16  license, it's in the system.  The only job they're

         17  looking for is the base check.  And before they send

         18  out that driver, tomorrow that driver, or today,

         19  that driver going to have a summons.  Don't send it.

         20    They don't care.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Don't send the

         22  driver, or don't send the car for that driver?

         23                 MR. VILORIA: No.  Don't send the

         24  driver.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So what's the driver
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          2  going to do then?  Just not work.

          3                 MR. VILORIA: Well, --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Until he or she

          5  corrects his own or her own license.

          6                 MR. VILORIA: Yes.  That's --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Isn't that something

          8  that your association should be doing?

          9                 MR. VILORIA: Yes.  We represent the

         10  drivers.  But we take care of the City.  How does

         11  the driver lose his license?  How the driver?  You

         12  don't know if this driver is have a bad record, like

         13  in the red light, speeding, or anything.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It seems like  --

         15                 MR. VILORIA: How do you think about

         16  any officer in the Police Department with bad

         17  record?  Or because, then you take care of his

         18  family?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Well, --

         20                 MR. VILORIA: He have to take care his

         21  family.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think it's

         23  incredibly admirable that your organization is

         24  putting the interests of the City as a whole first.

         25                 MR. VILORIA: The City is everybody.
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          2  My organization represents good drivers, don't

          3  represent bad drivers.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I see.  Well that's

          5  a point well made, and well taken.  Thank you.  Mr.

          6  Taylor.

          7                 MR. TAYLOR: Thank you Chairman.  My

          8  name is Lloyd Taylor.  I'm here in my capacity as a

          9  business consultant to the For Hire industry.  I

         10  have looked at these rule changes, and I think we

         11  need to look at individual changes from at least

         12  three perspectives.

         13                 One is the issue market imperfection.

         14    Things that we refer, generally, as public safety,

         15  consumer protection, service availability,

         16  profitability, and public interest issues that

         17  relate to traffic congestion, and air pollution and

         18  the like.

         19                 The second thing I think we need to

         20   --  the second perspective I think we need to use

         21  to look at these rules is the business of being able

         22  to communicate to a licensee.  So you need names,

         23  you need addresses.  You need telephone numbers, and

         24  so on and so on.

         25                 And the third thing I think we need
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          2  to look at is the paperwork involved.  How much does

          3  it cost the base or the particular business to meet

          4  these requirements?

          5                 My take on these rules is as follows:

          6                 First of all, they go beyond the

          7  boundaries of public safety, consumer protection,

          8  and service availability.

          9                 Secondly, they contain excessive and

         10  unnecessary paperwork, and in most cases, cannot be

         11  completed without reference to the technical manuals

         12  on City Environment Quality Review, and business

         13  plans, and financial projections.  In this regard,

         14  they have little to do with profitability and

         15  productivity.

         16                 Thirdly, they place the onus unfairly

         17  on the business or base owner to define the scope or

         18  latitude for interpreting the requirements.

         19                 Fourthly, in crucial areas, the scope

         20  is unspecific or vague in ways that allow the

         21  regulator and his/her agent to make a bias and

         22  subjective interpretation of whether the

         23  requirements are met or not met.

         24                 In one case, that of a relocation

         25  applicant that I know of, an unjustified  -- in one
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          2  case of rule change, that's a relocation, an

          3  unjustified renewal license fee, even if a base is

          4  seeking a renewal had already been duly licensed to

          5  operate at another location, it now has to pay an

          6  additional $500 fee, just for that relocation.

          7                 Also, there is no discernible

          8  objective criteria for charging a fee of $500 for

          9  applying for a transfer or sell stock between, or

         10  among principals.  And why should principals have to

         11  apply to TLC to transfer stock or ownership?  Seems

         12  an absurd imposition if you have no power to

         13  distribute what is a private matter in the first

         14  place.

         15                 These problems are exacerbated when

         16  the applicant goes to the Community Boards, whose

         17  jobs as custodians of neighborhood public interests

         18  is often compromised by genuine lack of information

         19  and appreciation for what is behind these new rule

         20  changes, which is what we talk about all morning.

         21                 The practical result of these changes

         22  are that many base owners are finding themselves out

         23  of their depths, running around  nervously in

         24  circles, needlessly going to classes held by the TLC

         25  to explain what is required, and to justify why they
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          2  should be in FHV, why they should be in FHV classes.

          3                 What I submit, Mr. Chairman, is that

          4  we have an overdose of bureaucracy or regulation for

          5  its own sake.  But for data collection reasons that

          6  are invasive in the absence of any defined and

          7  explicit limitation on the scope of interpretation.

          8                 I identified these specific problems:

          9                 One.  Statements and business records

         10  to disclose all individual partners, officers,

         11  principals and stakeholders. The problem here is

         12  that most base owners and Community Boards interpret

         13  the word "statements" to mean financial statements,

         14  too. In my judgement, financial statements have

         15  little to do with the objectives or regulation in

         16  the For Hire Vehicle industry.

         17                 B.  Copy of resumes of all

         18  individual, partners, officers, principals, and

         19  stockholders together with a cover letter

         20  demonstrating the ability to manage a base station.

         21  Why would a regulator want a resume from a person it

         22  does not employ, nor give loans, provide no

         23  management or business consulting services is beyond

         24  my ken.  And to my mind, the absurdity of all

         25  absurdities is the requirement for proof that a
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          2  prospective licensee can manage a base, especially

          3  when we are treating with applicants who invented an

          4  industry where none previously existed.

          5                 Completion of financial disclosure

          6  statement.  My commonsensical view here of this rule

          7  is that this is an unwarranted and illegal

          8  requirement.  And above all, it is only tangentially

          9  related to the objectives of regulation.  It

         10  presumes that a base owner is a public position or

         11  job which is subject to the conditions of a

         12  financial disclosure and scrutiny on moral and

         13  ethical grounds.

         14                 D. Proposed plan to fully utilize

         15  off- street parking.  This requirement is proof that

         16  TLC regulations continue to treat a large segment of

         17  the FHV industry radio dispatch bases as if they own

         18  vehicles.  That's something we risk continuously.

         19  And still, as repetition, even where the law

         20  provides for the Taxi and Limousine Commission to

         21  give exemptions, either on hardships, or the

         22  unavailability of space, and bases can prove it, the

         23  exemption is never given.  It has happened on one

         24  occasion, and they take the issue right to the court

         25  system.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Taylor, do you

          3  have a written copy or  --

          4                 MR. TAYLOR: It's all there.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I need to ask you to

          6  wrap up.  But it sounds like you're totally against

          7  the revised, or the new TLC procedures for base

          8  station licensing.

          9                 MR. TAYLOR: Not totally if you read

         10  the whole thing, but --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Not totally if what?

         12                 MR. TAYLOR: Not totally if you read

         13  what I'm saying, but at least 85 percent.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: At least 95 percent?

         15                 MR. TAYLOR: 85 percent.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Oh, 85 percent.

         17  Okay.  I think it will be helpful that we have the

         18  testimony, which we do.  Thank you.

         19                 Mr. Mazer.  Nice to see you in this

         20   -- I guess in this somewhat of a new capacity.

         21                 MR. MAZER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please identify

         23  yourself for the record.

         24                 MR. MAZER:  Peter Mazer.  Here as a

         25  private citizen today.  I will disclose that I have,
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          2  in the past, performed some services for the Livery

          3  Owners' Coalition, but I am not speaking today on

          4  behalf of the Livery Owners' Coalition.  And my

          5  remarks have not been reviewed by them or approved

          6  by them or sanctioned by them.  But they are my

          7  remarks.

          8                 Oh yes.  And I'm willing to start by

          9  just taking a quick look at the law, which is where

         10  we have to start, which is 19- 511 of the

         11  Administrative Code.  And look at the process by

         12  which the Taxi and Limousine Commission and the City

         13  Council looks at and reviews both new and renewal

         14  base license applications.  And I don't think the

         15  law was intended to be very difficult.  There are a

         16  few things that are in there that seem to be fairly

         17  straightforward.  Off- street parking.  Community

         18  concerns with respect to the conditions of a

         19  neighborhood.  Making sure that the officers,

         20  directors, and shareholders do not have criminal

         21  records.            What we have here, though, is a

         22  process that now seems to have taken on a life of

         23  itself, to take what are basically very simple

         24  requirements and make them extremely difficult and

         25  very complex.
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          2                 Off- street parking is a very simple

          3  concept.  The Taxi and Limousine Commission

          4  promulgated a rule.  You look at a map, you see

          5  where the base is located, you look at a geographic

          6  area, you figure out how many cars that base has,

          7  and you figure out if the base is in compliance.

          8                 The Taxi and Limousine Commission

          9  fingerprints all of the officers of any business

         10  that it licenses.  And when an officer is arrested,

         11  it immediately gets notification of these arrests.

         12  So the Taxi and Limousine Commission does not have

         13  to go further with respect to doing criminal

         14  background investigations of renewal applicants.  It

         15  has this information already.  If a base owner, who

         16  has been disclosed to the Taxi and Limousine

         17  Commission is arrested for any crime, the Taxi and

         18  Limousine Commission is notified, and it can take

         19  the appropriate action.  Whether it be to suspend

         20  the base license, or suspend an individual license

         21  of this individual.  And it does that.

         22                 With respect to how the City Council

         23  is involved pre- approval, the Chairperson looked at

         24  the provision that's relevant, which is subsection

         25  G, which provides that the Community Board and the
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          2  City Council Member in the district where the base

          3  is located, gets a copy of the application.  That's

          4  it.  Not input. Not review.  Not a process.  You get

          5  a copy of the application, and the Community Board

          6  members, or the City Council Member can then contact

          7  the Commission and express their concern.

          8                 Here, we're taking on a much more

          9  complicated process than is absolutely necessary.

         10  This is a notification process.  The City Council

         11  has a review process.  That comes into place after

         12  the Commission reviews.

         13                 And finally, the complicated one, and

         14  the one that seems to draw all the attention is this

         15  so- called Community of Life issue.  And you look at

         16  the law and it says that the Taxi and Limousine

         17  Commission, when it's reviewing a renewal

         18  application, looks at traffic conditions, sidewalk

         19  congestion, and noise.  And in reviewing those

         20  criteria, it looks at whether or not the base owner

         21  has been convicted of any violations relevant to

         22  those areas. Well, the Commission has that

         23  information.  The Commission knows every base, it

         24  has a record on every base.  It knows every time a

         25  base owner gets a summons, and the adjudication of
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          2  the summons. And so the Commission knows if the base

          3  owner has had violations relating to traffic

          4  condition, noise, congestion.

          5                 And then finally, you look at the

          6  law, and you look at what the intent is, and the

          7  intent is to regulate base stations, but where does

          8  the problem lie?  If there is a problem with a

          9  driver who is using drugs, is that a base station

         10  problem or a driver problem?

         11                 The Taxi and Limousine Commission

         12  does not have any affinity between the base owner

         13  and the driver.  A driver gets a license by the

         14  Commission.  A drive drives for whomever base he

         15  wants.  I can drive for Lloyd today, and I can drive

         16  for Gene tomorrow.  The only affinity that the Taxi

         17  and Limousine Commission recognizes is the affinity

         18  between the base license and the affiliated vehicles

         19  that operate for that base.

         20                 And there's a beautiful thing about

         21  radio.  Radio works wherever you are.  I can put a

         22  base station in any one of your districts.  But the

         23  radio works everywhere.  It works within the five

         24  boroughs, it works outside of the five boroughs.  My

         25  cars, or a base owners cars go where the calls are.
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          2  So a base owner can put a base up in Staten Island,

          3  or in Nassau County, or Westchester County, for that

          4  matter, and have all their cars sitting up in

          5  Washington Heights, if that's where the business is.

          6    And if there's congestion, if they're creating a

          7  nuisance to the public, they may be creating a

          8  nuisance in an area so far removed from where the

          9  base is located.  And if the base is not even

         10  located in the five boroughs, the Taxi and Limousine

         11  Commission doesn't even tell you what to do as far

         12  as any of these reviews of the bases. And the

         13  Commission permits that.  Someone can have a Tier

         14  One license, and be located out of the City.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, Mr. Mazer, you

         16  have a great deal of expertise in how the TLC runs.

         17                 MR. MAZER: I did.  I have no

         18  knowledge of how the TLC has run over the last 14

         19  months.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         21                 MR. MAZER: Including any period of

         22  time when these new changes were put in place.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Some of these issues

         24  that you raise are far more encompassing than what

         25  this hearing is about.  And those are issues that,
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          2  for a long time, the City hasn't tried to grapple

          3  with, but obviously, at some point, it's going to

          4  need to grapple.  And your almost heading into the

          5  bigger  -- that big Mamma of a question, that the

          6  dual system we have here between  --

          7                 MR. MAZER: I'm also heading into the

          8  question of how many  --  which no one addresses  --

          9  how many cars should the City have, and how do you

         10  mane the leap from licensing a base, which is

         11  basically a storefront or garage into how to license

         12  the 200 cars that are running around the streets,

         13  connected with that base.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.  Those are

         15  bigger issues. There's no way we're going to be able

         16  to deal with that in this hearing.  Although, you're

         17  right, at some point, we do have to get our arms

         18  around that.

         19                 The issue of there not being a limit

         20  on the number of For Hire vehicles seems not to be

         21  as relevant today, just because for whatever reason,

         22  the number of vehicles and stations have actually

         23  declined a little bit.  So there appears to be some

         24  kind of a self- controlling mechanism in the market

         25  to control the number.  It's not like we're going to
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          2  keep seeing an upward movement in the number of

          3  vehicles as well as For Hire base stations.  So

          4  there's some kind of self- correcting mechanism

          5  there.

          6                 But your testimony basically says

          7  that the new requirements are too onerous, and

          8  unnecessary.

          9                 MR. MAZER:  I would agree with that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is that nearly like

         11  100 percent, or more like 85 percent, like Mr.

         12  Taylor's?

         13                 MR. MAZER: I think it's 100 percent.

         14  And the one I didn't address, but if I could have

         15  one more, another 30 seconds to address is with

         16  respect to the new base license applications.  The

         17  requirement for the environmental review.  The way,

         18  as I understand it, the legal argument that the

         19  Commission is making for saying that an

         20  environmental review is necessary, with respect to a

         21  new base license application is that it's based upon

         22  the discretion that the Commission has to grant or

         23  deny a license.  That seems to be the standard that

         24  the City Environmental Quality Review Act looks at.

         25  For example, if you're going to put up a gas
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          2  station, that's already zoned for a gas station, you

          3  don't have to go through an environmental review.

          4  If you're going to a lot of things, if you want to

          5  open up a tailor shop, you don't have to go through

          6  an environmental review, even though it's a new

          7  business, but they're saying that you have to do

          8  this as a new business, you have to do an

          9  environmental review because the TLC has some

         10  discretion whether or not to grant or deny the

         11  license.

         12                 But I'm saying, if you look at the

         13  law, and you look at the standards that they're

         14  supposed to apply in the law, off street parking,

         15  criminal review, quality of life issues, need for

         16  the service, I don't know if it's so discretionary.

         17                 So I think the burden of the

         18  environmental review may be an unnecessary burden,

         19  because I don't necessarily agree with the TLC's

         20  reading that this is a discretionary license

         21  application.  I think what you want to have is firm

         22  standards as to how you  --  if you're going into a

         23  business, you want to know, what do I have to do to

         24  open up a business?  Give me the requirements.  Let

         25  me meet them.  And if I meet the requirements,
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          2  please give me the license.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So you're

          4  saying that they're asking for something that they

          5  will evaluate, but they're not giving up front the

          6  basis for their evaluation, whether it's going to be

          7  a pass or fail.  They're giving you an exam, but not

          8  telling you that the passing mark is 75.

          9                 MR. MAZER: That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you gentlemen,

         11  for participating in this hearing.  Yes.  Oh, yes,

         12  we have questions from both Council Members Martinez

         13  and then Reyna.  And they said chivalry was dead.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: He knows I'd

         15  kill him if he didn't.

         16                 I just wanted to take an opportunity

         17  here to thank our Chair for providing this hearing.

         18  Aside from just the application process here, we

         19  wanted to end this term with issues -  me personally

         20  at least  -- to hear from the industry.  Because

         21  there are a lot of things stirring up and you hear

         22  third source, and you can't get a clear indication

         23  as to where is the industry going.

         24                 Second of all, I wanted to find out,

         25  representatives like yourselves, have you
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          2  personally, already gone through this new

          3  application process?  Not being a new applicant, but

          4  being a renewal?  And how did you comply with the

          5  regulations as far as the EAS requirements?  Did you

          6  have to hire someone to process that portion?  Or

          7  did you do it yourself?  Or you haven't even come

          8  across that portion of the application because

          9  you're still gathering your information?

         10                 And how much longer is it taking you

         11  versus previous to this new application process to

         12  get licensed as far as your renewals were concerned?

         13                 MR. TAYLOR: I can answer that.  I

         14  think that's a very important question.  I have been

         15  hired by large numbers of businesses, and I can tell

         16  you, it's very cumbersome.  And most businesses

         17  can't do it.  They can't do it alone, they can't do

         18  it properly.

         19                 I don't think the TLC knows what the

         20  guidelines are. Because they change them all the

         21  time.  That's why they have to start the schools.

         22  And the base owners go to the schools and they come

         23  out to me and tell me they don't understand what's

         24  going on.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Have you
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          2  expressed this to the TLC Commission?  On the

          3  record?  Off the record?  Because my understanding

          4  from the testimony I heard from Chairman Daus is

          5  that everything's honky dory  He's heard from no one

          6  complaining about the process.  Perhaps one or two.

          7  But he made it seem like the majority are complying

          8  with what they need to do, and they're happy about

          9  it.  They think it's a better system.

         10                 MR. TAYLOR: Not true at all.  I know

         11  a guy who went for relocation, and he had relocation

         12  and renewal at the same time. And he went with three

         13  pages for a Comprehensive Operating Plan. When he

         14  went in, and told them he was bringing it, --  I

         15  mean --

         16                 MR. PERO: I'd like to interject here

         17  for a second, Councilwoman Reyna.  On a base

         18  renewal, it's not required to have an EIS study

         19  made.  Okay?  It's only on transfers, if you're

         20  moving a couple of blocks away, you need to get this

         21  study.  Or, if you're a new base opening up.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But with that

         23  notion, Gene, if I may call you Gene here, because

         24  we're friends, I wanted to just find out from you,

         25  you have members who perhaps are transferring from
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          2  locations.  And so, have you heard from that

          3  membership of a situation where they had to provide

          4  this type of information?  And they have no place to

          5  begin, because they're not familiar with the

          6  process, so they have to hire an then that incurs

          7  and additional cost?

          8                 MR. PERO: I would say this.  That

          9  basically, fleet owned operations, where they're

         10  located, like myself, on East 16th Street and Avenue

         11  U, and all the varied cars services that I

         12  represent, they're in specific locations, and

         13  they've been there, like in my situation, I've been

         14  there for over 25 years.  They very rarely move, not

         15  unless it's a problem with a landlord, or some

         16  larger facility, or something like that they need.

         17                 But there was  --  Mr. Mazer was at

         18  one of our meetings about two months ago, and I

         19  think a couple of people might have approached him

         20  on the basis of moving their base location, and I

         21  think we'll give the mike to him, and he can give

         22  you more information on that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And, Mr. Mazer,

         24  while you're going to comment, as far as the

         25  questions I have referred to you, I wanted you to
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          2  answer yes or no, as far as, in your professional

          3  background, with your professional background, do

          4  you see TLC duplicating services here, required of

          5  the industry, that they've already have in their

          6  system?

          7                 MR. MAZER: Yes.  I'll answer first

          8  the question about the costs.  I have heard. And

          9  it's always basically, you may call it here say or

         10  second- hand knowledge, but base owners have told me

         11  what they have paid for the preparation of an

         12  environmental assessment review, for either a new

         13  base or a relocation.  And I've heard figures

         14  ranging from a low of $3,000, to a high of $10,000

         15  for the preparation of an environmental review and

         16  for the preparation of a Comprehensive Operating

         17  Plan for new bases.  Now I'm not saying that's

         18  required.  I personally have not done any of them

         19  for any bases, but base owners have told me that

         20  they have, in fact, retained experts who have done

         21  it for them, and those were the prices that were

         22  charged by the experts, with no guarantee --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Who certifies

         24  an expert?  How do these base applicants know that

         25  these are experts?
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          2                 MR. MAZER: Because they put in

          3  advertisement in the Taxi newspaper, and I guess

          4  that makes them an expert, because that's usually

          5  how they found out.  Basically, the way people  --

          6  they went to attorneys that they knew who got them

          7  somebody that may have done an environmental review

          8  for somebody else.  Or they've gone to somebody in

          9  one of the known industry attorneys, or one of the

         10  known industry non attorneys specialists, and

         11  approached them.  If you go down to Long Island

         12  City, you know, there's a whole cottage industry

         13  surrounding the TLC facility in Long Island City.

         14  You can get expertise on just about anything.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: A hub.

         16                 MR. MAZER: A hub of taxi expertise.

         17  And you can walk into any one of these places and

         18  they'll give you a price.  They'll prepare the

         19  documents for a price.

         20                 Now with respect to the duplication,

         21  the Taxi and Limousine Commission knows how many

         22  affiliated vehicles a base has. The Taxi and

         23  Limousine Commission knows the records of every one

         24  of these bases.  Of every one of these vehicles.

         25  The Taxi and Limousine Commission knows every
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          2  summons that's been issued to a base owner and the

          3  adjudication of the summons, and whether the base

          4  owner was found guilty or paid a fine.

          5                 Taxi and Limousine Commission knows

          6  whether or not anybody who has been disclosed on the

          7  application, by the base owner, as an owner or

          8  somebody with an interest in the base, whether or

          9  not they've been arrested or convicted of any crime.

         10

         11                 Taxi and Limousine Commission has on

         12  its file for every existing base owner, the

         13  certificate of incorporation, the by- laws approving

         14  the officers, the lease for the premises, and the

         15  lease for the off- street parking.  And they have

         16  inspectors who have gone and verified that the off-

         17  street parking in fact exists.               So all

         18  of that information exists for a base.  Now what

         19  they don't have in their files, would be if there

         20  are non articulated complaints to the government,

         21  let's say, regarding the base that was not funneled

         22  through the Taxi and Limousine Commission.  So they

         23  would not know if some member of the community went

         24  to the Community Planning Board and complained about

         25  a particular base, if that complainant didn't file a
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          2  complaint with the Taxi and Limousine Commission.

          3  But if they filed a consumer complaint with the Taxi

          4  and Limousine Commission, which a lot of them do,

          5  the Commission has a record of that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And as well as

          7  311 complaints.               MR. MAZER: Any

          8  complaint that comes that way, the Taxi and

          9  Limousine Commission would have a record of.  A

         10  complaint that came directly to a Council Member, or

         11  to a Community Board member, they wouldn't know

         12  about.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And we can

         14  certainly fix that component by referring those

         15  complaints to DCA.

         16                 MR. MAZER: I would think that most

         17  complaints that are received certainly at a Council

         18  level were, at least at my tenure at the Taxi and

         19  Limousine Commission, were in fact referred to the

         20  Commission for action.  But if a Council Member got

         21  a complaint regarding the base, it would be

         22  forwarded to the TLC for investigation.  I can't

         23  speak to whether or not Community Boards do that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And I will go

         25  back in my community specifically, and request my
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          2  District Managers information as to what's their

          3  protocol in such an instance.  So that I can fix

          4  that loophole.  But that's manageable.

          5                 MR. MAZER: Right.  And another

          6  manageable way to do it is to educate the public

          7  that when they have a complaint, go to 311, file a

          8  complaint with the TLC, then there's a record of it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Absolutely.

         10                 And I want to ask, Mr. Mazer, in your

         11  objective, subjective  --  be it as it may, you

         12  choose whether you want to be subjective or

         13  objective.  But I want to find out why do you think

         14  TLC is going through these duplicative service

         15  requirements from the industry?  Bottom line, what

         16  are they going to accomplish that they don't right

         17  now?

         18                 MR. MAZER: This year, the Commission,

         19  at the staff level, made a decision that these

         20  matters have to go to the Board of Commissioners for

         21  approval.  That was done at some point this year.

         22  Prior to that, the decisions for approving or

         23  disapproving a base license were done at the staff

         24  level.  And I think we, Chairman Liu explored that

         25  at great length earlier.  Stating that he was
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          2  unhappy with the fact that those decisions were made

          3  at the staff level.

          4                 But if you have objective criteria,

          5  and the staff is applying those objective criteria,

          6  you can have decisions made at the staff level.  The

          7  TLC does not go to the Board of Commissioners, and I

          8  don't think anybody thinks that they should go to

          9  the Board of Commissioners for every pack license,

         10  for every For Hire Vehicle driver's license, for

         11  every vehicle owner.  But for some reasons, bases

         12  are treated differently.  And I think that's because

         13  of the high profile of the base, and the fact, that

         14  to the extent that there's quality of life issue,

         15  and that there's community concerns it seems to be

         16  base focused.  The base seems to be the magnet where

         17  perhaps activity that comes to the attention of

         18  Council Members and Police Officers is focused

         19  because the bases are 24- hour operations, it seems

         20  to be a hub of a lot of activity going on.  And so

         21  it just seems to be a magnet.

         22                 So the Commission has always

         23  recognized, and the local law mandates, that the

         24  Commission recognize that bases be treated a little

         25  bit differently than other types of licenses.
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          2                 So once they've decided that they had

          3  to go to the full Board of Commissioners, it's very

          4  clear that they have to give the Commissioners a

          5  package of material.  They cannot expect the

          6  Commissioners to rely in a vacuum simply act upon

          7  the staff recommendations and say, well, we like

          8  these bases and we don't like these bases.

          9                 And one thing I do have to point out

         10  as far as I understand it right now, the

         11  Commissioners don't get the denials. So if the staff

         12  makes a determination that a base should be denied,

         13  it doesn't go to the Commission.  The base owner

         14  doesn't have a chance to then plead the case to the

         15  Commissioners for an overturning of that decision.

         16  The reverse is true.  If the staff approves the base

         17  application, the Commissioners can deny it.  So it

         18  seems not to be consistent in that way.

         19                 I think the Commission wants to err

         20  on the side of completeness, rather than on the side

         21  of an incomplete application. I don't think they

         22  want, especially since the City Council is looking

         23  at this, and the Board of Commission is looking at

         24  it, that they want a situation where the people

         25  making the decision do not have as much information
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          2  as possible.  So there's no possibility that

          3  somebody can come back and say, well, I don't have

          4  all of the information that I need to make an

          5  informed decision.

          6                 That being the case, the business

          7  owners are then placed in a position where they have

          8  to provide a lot of extra information, a lot of

          9  duplicative information, and a lot of information

         10   --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Mr. Mazer, I

         12  just want to cut you off on that point.  Because the

         13  basis of siding with the side of completion, is

         14  still not being complied with, because I never heard

         15  in the Chairman's testimony, a timeframe.  Or a

         16  final date of completion that is going to be

         17  incumbent upon the Commission to adhere by.  So that

         18  we're still not following through with a process

         19  that's going to ensure completion.

         20                 MR. MAZER: Right.  And the problem

         21  with that too, is that without completion, it's a

         22  fluid process, and things change. So today, the base

         23  owner that's in full compliance, tomorrow gets a

         24  complaint filed against that base owner because of

         25  some activity. Where next week, that base owner
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          2  cancels its lease for off- street parking, and parks

          3  its cars, and changes oil on the street.  Things

          4  change on a day- to- day basis.

          5                 So the Commission is always looking

          6  at a snapshot. Or a two- year snapshot.  If you're

          7  looking at a renewal, you're saying, well, this is

          8  what happened over the last two years.  Here are the

          9  violations I've received over the last two years.

         10  Here's what I'm doing to be in compliance today.

         11  That doesn't tell us anything about tomorrow.

         12                 But when you're looking at approving

         13  a business license, you have to look at some point.

         14  You have to say you're in compliance today.  I mean,

         15  every business you look at, you look at something.

         16  You're a landlord, and you want a rent increase, you

         17  look at the condition of the building today.  After

         18  the rent increase goes through, things change, and

         19  then somebody else takes over.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Well, how do we

         21  get there?

         22                 MR. MAZER: Through enforcement.  I

         23  think holding  -- how do you get there?  I think the

         24  process for looking at a new base should be thorough

         25  and complete, looking at whether the base is needed
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          2  in a community, taking a very close look at who is

          3  running the base, really running the base.  Every

          4  one of the officers, directors and shareholders.

          5  Looking at how many cars they have.  Looking at if

          6  there's the need for this service.  So it doesn't

          7  have to be an environmental  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Isn't that

          9  already there?

         10                 MR. MAZER: But if you do that for the

         11  new base, then with respect to renewals, the process

         12  should be, what have I done since I was approved?

         13  Have I broken any law since I've been approved?

         14  Have my officers gotten into trouble?  Have I failed

         15  to pay any taxes?  Have any of my business practices

         16  been documented as being no good?  Am I out there

         17  dispatching unlicensed drivers? Am I out there

         18  dispatching uninsured vehicles?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You're

         20  referring to a check list.

         21                 MR. MAZER: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: That's

         23  standard.

         24                 MR. MAZER: If you do that on a

         25  renewal, and you look at from point A to point B,
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          2  which is from the date that a license was first

          3  approved or last renewed, until the date that it

          4  comes before the Board of Commissioners for further

          5  renewal, what has this base owner done?  This base

          6  owner, if they have complied, they should be

          7  entitled to the renewal.  If they haven't complied,

          8  then you look at, well, what haven't you complied

          9  with?  Whether you sent out too many uninsured

         10  vehicles last year?  You've sent out unlicensed

         11  drivers on a few occasions.  We had complaints that

         12  you were out there in front of your base changing

         13  oil in the street. And being a nuisance.  What are

         14  you going to do to prevent that from happening

         15  again?  Call that base owner in, and not have staff

         16  review it, let that base owner go before the

         17  Commissioners, and say, I made a mistake six months

         18  ago.  I was doing something bad. Well, I've changed

         19  my practices.  I fired the dispatcher at night. I

         20  put a procedure in place.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: It's my

         22  understanding that we haven't done that in the past,

         23  and --

         24                 MR. MAZER: I don't think it's ever

         25  been done.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And so, why are

          3  we not doing this?

          4                 MR. MAZER: It's been a process of

          5  here's what I'm doing today.  And here's what my

          6  record looks like.  But not a process of what have I

          7  done for the last  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: On an ongoing

          9  basis.

         10                 MR. MAZER: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Which is why

         12  our Commission was formed, I would believe.

         13                 MR. MAZER: To look at it on a day-

         14  to- day basis, and say, this is what the base owner

         15  has done since the last time they've been before the

         16  Commission.  If they've done a good job, then it's a

         17  very simple process.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I mean, I would

         19  have good reason, from what I've heard today, to

         20  start legislating all these things, if I have no

         21  confidence in an agency that's supposed to be

         22  monitoring all of this.  And so, I'd hate to get to

         23  that point, and we need to figure out whether that's

         24  through this Committee, or in an individual

         25  legislator's agenda to be able to get to this point.
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          2  Where we're going to have a functioning agency, and

          3  a Commission that's going to oversee all of this

          4  without being too cumbersome. Or putting hefty

          5  penalties and fees, and third- party reasons to

          6  become you know, technical assistant bureaus where

          7  we're making a process more complicated on

          8  individual owners, individual drivers, where there

          9  would be good reasons at the end of the day to just

         10  say, I'm through.  I'm not going to service the City

         11  anymore.

         12                 MR. MAZER: It seems, if you look at

         13  the law, it says very simple process.  The

         14  requirements are clear.  They're very simple.  How

         15  it's been translated into a renewal process that's

         16  become a lot more cumbersome, seems to be a

         17  deviation from a plain reading of the law.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And we approve

         19  our Commissioners as they're referred.  I think we

         20  need to invite our Commissioners from the TLC, as

         21  far as the Commission is concerned, to come before

         22  us, and express to us how they are performing their

         23  duties as it relates to this Commission, and all the

         24  points that have been mentioned here, because if

         25  it's not done in the past, and it's not being done

                                                            170

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  in the future, then what are they working on?

          3                 I'd like that to be a suggestion for

          4  this Committee, moving forward.  Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you

          6  Council Member.  Again, so then just go back to a

          7  final question Council Member Reyna post.  So you're

          8  saying that, and I come, having the experience of

          9  trying to communicate to TLC, how, when one controls

         10  the information, and I think that's the process

         11  here, and one of the reasons for, if I may say that,

         12  we have this kind of system. A system where staff

         13  makes determination and the Commissioner's office

         14  makes recommendation.  Rather than the Commissioners

         15  hearing from the actual bases or individuals that

         16  are going to be impacted by the decision.   As a

         17  matter of fact, before, when the Commission meets to

         18  approve a base, it's not an open discussion.  They

         19  do not hear from the public.  The Commission sits,

         20  looks at the information that are given to them by

         21  the Commissioner, there's no public opinion, there

         22  is no community opinion, or let's say community

         23  groups that may say, Commissioners, this is not a

         24  good -   just as we have these hearings, where we

         25  hear from both sides, they don't hear  --  the

                                                            171

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Commissioners don't hear from the public. Whether

          3  for or against the base.

          4                 And my question is based on that.

          5  Does the law require, the current law require for

          6  this to be the process?

          7                 MR. MAZER: The current law is very

          8  vague on this. I mean, it talks about the Commission

          9  approving the base license application.  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But does it

         11  talk about the process?

         12                 MR. MAZER: The Commission shall

         13  require licensees to do  --  well, the process is

         14  what I've described.  The process is that --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No.  I mean

         16  in terms of --

         17                 MR. MAZER: Oh, how the Commission --

         18  well that's a separate issue.  That's not an issue

         19  of how you approve base licenses, that's an issue

         20  looking at the City Charter, of how the Board of

         21  Commissioners act.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: The reason I

         23  ask that is because, you know, and I'll put this out

         24  there, this industry is being milked.  Right now,

         25  people are making money over $5,000, $1,000, $500.
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          2  These are the numbers I've heard of bases that have

          3  to pay to do this environmental study.  And then I

          4  have a Commissioner who said, in the record, that

          5  they don't even know if they can legally say who can

          6  certify an environmental  --

          7                 MR. MAZER: Or if one is even

          8  required.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Exactly.  So

         10  then, if you can't tell me that legally, you don't

         11  have a list or can say, or recommend, how can you

         12  then legally require someone to come up with an

         13  environmental study that you, yourself, don't even

         14  know to certify  --

         15                 MR. MAZER: I know the people that

         16  have filed environmental studies.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Well,

         18  anybody can do it. According to the Commissioner,

         19  right now, I could go out there, myself, open up a

         20  business, and say to these bases, come here, I'll do

         21  it.  Just give me $1,000.

         22                 MR. MAZER: Right.  As long as you

         23  sign the document. As long as you have your name on

         24  the bottom of the document, that's fine.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Correct.  So
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          2  then, I wanted to go back to another question that

          3  Council Member Reyna posed. And on the issue of

          4  ensuring that when you have an application coming

          5  forward, right?  And already, TLC knows immediately

          6  if a driver is arrested, for whatever reason, and

          7  his license is suspended, --

          8                 MR. MAZER: Now his license is not

          9  suspended for every arrest, but it can be.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, I mean

         11  in an instance where, for example, the Commissioner

         12  mentioned that the bases should be responsible for

         13  ensuring that drivers are not out there with a

         14  suspended license and so forth.  But the question I

         15  have is, does the Commission, does the TLC, the TLC

         16  get information when a driver has his license

         17  suspended?

         18                 MR. MAZER: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.  And

         20  then TLC  --

         21                 MR. MAZER: Well, if the TLC is

         22  suspending his license, it knows.  The TLC also gets

         23  information from Motor Vehicles  -- I don't know if

         24  it's on a real- time basis.  I can't say that it's

         25  on a real- time basis.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But they

          3  expect the bases to know this information.

          4                 MR. MAZER: Well, a base owner can get

          5  a summons for dispatching a vehicle to a driver who

          6  has no license.  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Do you see

          8  what I'm getting at?

          9                 MR. MAZER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: If TLC can't

         11  get this information as rapidly as we would like,

         12  can you imagine then, a base owner trying to get

         13  that information?  On real time?

         14                 MR. MAZER: On real time?  Well, they

         15  can ask the driver and hope the driver tells the

         16  truth.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Oh, come on.

         18

         19                 MR. MAZER: I know.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But you

         21  understand exactly where I'm coming from?

         22                 MR. MAZER: Exactly.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: The other

         24  question I had was, on the issue of the TLC license.

         25    The actual license for the driver.

                                                            175

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 MR. MAZER: For the driver.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

          4                 MR. MAZER: The For Hire Vehicle

          5  Driver's License?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.  So

          7  what --  give me an example of how can a driver lose

          8  that license, or suspended.

          9                 MR. MAZER: For suspended, drives can

         10  be suspended for many criminal arrests.  Not all

         11  criminal arrests result in suspension, but many do.

         12  Any felony, and some misdemeanors will do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Or a drug

         14  test.  I've had-

         15                 MR. MAZER: Failing a drug test

         16  results in a notification of a suspension which then

         17  results in a hearing.  And if they --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So you're

         19  saying immediately lets the base know of this.

         20                 MR. MAZER: TLC never lets the base

         21  owner know of that.  There is no affinity between a

         22  driver and a base owner.  The TLC does not  --  and

         23  I can't fault the TLC for this, because the driver

         24  is not affiliated with a base.  So the TLC learns

         25  that driver A has failed a drug test, or driver A
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          2  has been arrested, the TLC does not know who that

          3  driver works for.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes, but how

          5  do they expect -- so how does TLC  --

          6                 MR. MAZER: And they should.  Perhaps

          7  there should be a way that the TLC has an affinity

          8  between drivers and bases, but at this present time,

          9  under the law and the rules, it does not.

         10                 MR. PER0: I'd like to say something.

         11  When a driver gets a vehicle, when he gets assigned

         12  to a vehicle, he has to be affiliated to a base.  On

         13  the independents.  In other words, if I buy a car

         14  and I want to work for your base, I have to specify

         15  that I'm working for your base.  Of course, later on

         16  down the line, I could work for his base or the

         17  other guys base.

         18                 But getting back to the other

         19  situation about suspended licenses, of course, you

         20  have two different types of license.  You have a TLC

         21  license, and you have your DMV license. The DMV, I

         22  mean, in our particular operation, we have a direct

         23  connect with Albany.  There's a fee of seven

         24  dollars, that if I pump in your license number, your

         25  drivers license number, it will show all the
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          2  summonses, and whether you're under suspension or

          3  revocation and so forth and so on.  And of course,

          4  you would have to   --  you can't be doing that on a

          5  daily basis, I mean it would be unsurmountable the

          6  amount of money that would be involved.

          7                 And the driver would only know if he

          8  was suspended. So like you spoke about before,

          9  initially, I don't think he's going to come forward

         10  and say, hey, listen, I have a suspended license, I

         11  can't work.

         12                 The other license, which the TLC

         13  license, the TLC never notifies you whether the

         14  license is under suspension or not. You have to go

         15  onto their website, there's no charge for that. But,

         16  if their website is up, down, over and under, you

         17  know, you have to be lucky to get into the website.

         18  And then, like I say, it's all the time- consuming,

         19  whether you assign a person to do this on a daily

         20  basis.

         21                 So, I don't think any base logically

         22  will do this on a regular basis.  I do it possibly

         23  once every six months to be very honest with you.

         24  But I run a driver's license through DMV, so if

         25  you've got 50 or 60 drivers and it's seven dollars a
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          2  pop, you're looking at over $200 in fees just to

          3  check out a driver's license.

          4                 And if you're talking about the TLC,

          5  it's all according to if you can get into the site,

          6  which, I mean, sometimes you could readily get into

          7  the site, but otherwise, it's all time consuming and

          8  money consuming to verify whether the driver is

          9  suspended or not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I

         11  understand.  But still, if you don't go into the

         12  website, you have no official notification, and then

         13  TLC could come to you and say, I'm going to suspend

         14  your base license, because you have drivers with a

         15  suspended TLC license, correct?

         16                 MR. PERO: Well, they probably

         17  wouldn't suspend your base license for that.  They

         18  would issue a summons for dispatching --

         19                 MR. MAZER: Which, on a renewal, is

         20  one of the things you would look at.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Same thing.

         22  So you're telling me that it's my business, without

         23  any official notification from the Commission, to

         24  the base, letting them know, X driver, suspended

         25  license.  So if that's not the process then TLC
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          2  comes in, and issue a summons to the base for

          3  allowing this driver to continue to operate, which

          4  the base didn't know that TLC had suspended that

          5  license.

          6                 MR. MAZER: That's a possibility.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, you

          8  know, finally, you know, as Council Member Reyna

          9  said, I'm extremely concerned with this process.

         10  I'm concerned because when we look at the history of

         11  the industry of livery drivers, we are basically

         12  looking at an immigrant community, and not

         13  necessarily from Latin America, I'm talking

         14  immigrant community of all kinds.  It's the first

         15  opportunity of employment.  The same is true, that

         16  it is also one of the first opportunity for

         17  entrepreneurship in the City for these communities.

         18  And yet, when we look at TLC, we see a bureaucratic

         19  process for more money to be dished out for people

         20  to work.  And for people to operate.

         21                 It's clear and simple.  And you know,

         22  as a legislator myself, trying to communicate with

         23  TLC, opposition to something, or to try to

         24  communicate with TLC my communicate on a certain

         25  situation, and then not to have the Commission
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          2  informed is a problem.  To hear that you have Albany

          3  coming to the Commission, and the insurance industry

          4  to the Commission, and tell them, we don't need to

          5  do this, and for TLC to go ahead and do, and make

          6  the decision without consultation, is worrisome.

          7                 And you know, as Council Member Reyna

          8  mentioned, we're putting an agenda together.  We're

          9  looking at this agency. And we're looking at the way

         10  it operates.  Because it is outrageous, and I think

         11  that I'm glad that I had the experience I had with

         12  dealing with TLC, and the result that came out of

         13  that, I'm glad it happened also.  Because it made me

         14  look into more how is it working.

         15                 And we, as Council Members, we also

         16  have a responsibility.  And I'm going to make it my

         17  business to make sure that I meet with each

         18  delegation, because each delegation appoints a

         19  member to the Commission.

         20                 And you will find that from my

         21  experience, many of those members that represent us

         22  in the Commission, are following the instruction of

         23  the Commissioner.  Of the Chairman.

         24                 MR. MAZER: Absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And I think
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          2  that we need to establish, as mentioned earlier, a

          3  direct line of communication with those members, and

          4  I think that those members also, as Council Member

          5  Reyna mentioned, should come to the Council and talk

          6  to us about process.  And how it works.  Because

          7  it's really concerning that this industry, all the

          8  time TLC puts out a regulation, there's an industry

          9  out there providing service for it, and charging.

         10                 MR. MAZER: Definitely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, I'm

         12  calling this a clearance, the transparency campaign

         13  in TLC in the coming year.

         14                 I want to thank you gentlemen for

         15  your --

         16                 MR. PERO: I'd just like to bring up

         17  one other thing here Councilman.  When you're

         18  setting up your agenda, and you're talking about

         19  immigrants coming to this country, and first job

         20  that they may get and be successful, and get off the

         21  welfare rolls, and social service and all this other

         22  stuff, and make a legitimate living, I think also,

         23  you should be concerned about the Workers'

         24  Compensation that is not available to the affiliated

         25  operators that work for these cars service bases
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          2  that would protect them and their families, God

          3  forbid, of an injury, or a theft, in a robbery or

          4  whatever type of thing that would occur in their

          5  vehicle.  Workers' Compensation today is very

          6  important for the  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, and when

          8  I talk about an agenda, we're definitely going to

          9   --  my office will be contacting the industry to

         10  make sure that we're on track with the issues that

         11  we want to bring forward.

         12                 So I want to thank you for your

         13  testimony and thank you for coming down.  Meeting

         14  adjourned.

         15                 MR. MAZER: Happy holidays.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: You too.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 1:40 p.m.)
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